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Audit report on the consolidated financial
statements issued by an independent auditor

To the Shareholders of LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A.:
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS
TELEMATICS, S.A. (the Parent) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES (the Group), which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2022, the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated statement
of cash flows and the nates to the consolidated financial statements for the year then
ended.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give, in all material
respects, a true and fair view of the Company's equity and financial position at December
31, 2022, as well as its consolidated results and cash flows for the financial year ending
on said date, in accordance with the application of the regulatory framework of financial
information (identified in note 2.a of the consolidated annual report) and, in particular,
with the accounting principles and criteria contained therein.

Basis of opinion

We have performed our audit in accordance with the regulations governing the auditing
of accounts in force in Spain. Qur responsibilities under these standards are described
below in the section an the auditor's respansibilities for the audit of the annual accounts
in our report,

We are independent from the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements,
including those of independence, which are applicable to our audit of the finandal
statements in Spain as required by the regulations governing the activity of auditing
accounts. Accordingly, we have not provided services other than those of the audit of
accounts nor have concurred situations or circumstances that, in accordance with the
provisions of the aforementioned governing regulations, have compromised the necessary
independence.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Key audit issues

The key audit matters are matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
Our audit procedures relating to these matters were designed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in the formation of our opinion on these and
we dao not express a separate opinion an these matters.
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Key audit issues

Audit response

Valuation of capitalized research and

development expenditures

As described in notes 3.b and 5 to the
accompanying consolidated financial
statements, the Group has intangible assets for
capitalized research and development projecl
expenses amounting to 2.584 thousand, These
expenses must be specifically individualised by
project and have reasons of ecohomic-
commercial  profitability, ameong  other
requirements in order to be capitalized in the
Group's balance sheet. In addition, the
assessment by the Parent's management and
directors of their recoverable amount or the
need for impairment  involves  valle
judgements and estimates. For these reasons,
we have considerad the valuation of Lhese
assets to be a key issue in our audit.

We have carried out the following audit
procedures, amang others:

< Understanding of the policies and
procedures applied by the Group for the
capitalization of research and
developmenl expenses,

We have anaiysed a sample of activations
of the prejects during the year, oblaining
evidence such as the hours and cost of the
same fncurred by the workers in the
different projects and the cost of external
collaborations.

We have obtained the certificates {ssued
by an independent third party on the
projects regarding the tax validity of the
capitalised amounts.

- We have obtained a detail of the book
value of research and development
expenses individualized by projects and
have analysed the reasonableness of the
recoverable value of these by reviewing
the reasonableness of the assumptions,
reviewing the arithmetic calculation,
analysing the sales projections, their
profitability and checking for deviations
from past estimates.

We have verified the correct amortization
of the different projects activaled based
on the useful life of the projects.

- Finally, we have verified that the notes to
the accompanying consclidated financial
statements include the related disclosures
required by the applicable financial
reporting framewoark., In this respect,
Motes 3.b and 5 to the accompanying
consolidated annual accounts include the
aforementioned disclosures,
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Key audit issues Audit response —
Valuation of soodwill on consolidation We have carried out the following audit
procedures, among others:

The accompanying consalidated balance sheet as - Understanding of the policies and procedures
of December 31, 2022 shows an amount 3,951 applied by the Group for the valuation of &
thousand  Furos  in  intapgible  assets, consolidation geodwill,
corresponiding to the goodwill arising from the
acquisition of Indenova, 5.1, during the year. - We have assessed the estimates made by the

) Group's management and by the Parent
We focus on this area, due to the amount of jts Company's Board of Directors to determine
net book value over total assets, and because the the recoverable value of the cash generating
assessment by Lhe Group's management and Lhe unit to which the goodwill belongs by
Parent Company's Board of Directors of its reviewing the impairment test provided,
recaverable wvalue or need for impairment analyzing the assumptions contained therein,
involves judgements and estimates. the methodology applied, the reasonableness

of the discount rate used and the

For these reasons, we have copsidersd the reasonableness of the  arithmetic
recoverable amount of soodwill as a key issue in calculations, as well as the business plan, to
our audit. determine the reasonablensss of the

expected future cash flows.

- Lastly, we have verified that the notes to the
accompanying consolidated annual accounts
include the related disclosures required by
the applicable financial reporting
framework. In this regard, notes 4.b, and &
to the accompanying censolidated annual
accounts  Include  the  aforementioned
disclosures,

Other information: Management report

The other information comprises exclusively the management report for the financial
year 2022, the formulation of which is the responsibility of the Parent’s directors and
does not form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Cur audit opinion on the consolidated annual accounts does not cover the consolidated
directors' report. Our responsibility for the consolidated directors’ report, as required
by the regulations governing the audit activity, is to assess and report on the consistency
of the consolidated directors' report with the consolidated annual accounts, based on
our knowledge of the Group obtained in the course of the audit of the consolidated annual
accounts, and to assess and report on whether the content and presentation of the
consolidated directors' report are in accordance with the applicable regulations. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there are material
misstatements, we are reqguired to report them.

Based on the work performed, as described in the preceding paragraph, the information
contained in the consolidated management report agrees with that in the conselidated
financial statements for financial year 2022 and its content and presentation are in
accordance with the applicable regulations.
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The responsibility of the management and the audit in the respect committee of the
consolidated financial statements

The management of the Parent Company are responsible for formulating the
accompanying financial statements so that they give a true image of the consolidated
assets, the consolidated financial situation and the consolidated results of the Company,
in accordance with the regulatory framework on financial information applicable to the
Entity in Spain, and of the internal control that they consider necessary to allow the
preparation of the financial statements free of material misstatement, due to fraud or
error.

In the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, the management are
responsible for assessing the Company's abitity to continue as a going concern, revealing,
as appropriate, the matters related with a company in operation and using the accounting
principle of a going concern except if the management intend to liquidate the Company
or cease operations, or if there is no other realistic alternative.

The Parent's audit committee is responsible for supervising the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

The auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance that the consolidated financtal
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, due to fraud or error, and
Lo issue an audit report that contains our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but it does not guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the regulations governing the audit activity in force in
Spain will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the regulations governing the account auditing
activity in Spain, we exercise professional judgment and maintain an attitude of
professional scepticism throughout the entire audit, Also:

« We identify and assess the risks of materfal misstatement in the consolidated
financial statements, due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures to
respond to those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or circumvention of
internal contral,

s Ve obtain knowledge of the internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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e We evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of the accounting estimates and disclosures by the Parent's directors.

«  We conclude whether the use, by the Parent's directors, of the accounting principle
of the Group as a going concern is adequate and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, we conclude on whether or not there is material uncertainty related to
events or conditions that can generate significant doubts about the ability of the
Group to continue as a going concern. |f we conclude that there is material
uncertainty, we are required to draw attention in our audit report to the
corresponding  information disclosed in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are nol adequate, we express a modified opinion. Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained at the date of our audit report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to be a going concern.

« We evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

« We obtain sufficient appropriate evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated annual accounts, We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We are solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We are required to communicate with the Parent's audit committee regarding, amongst
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during the
course of the audit.

We also required the Parent's audit committee with a statement that we have complied
with the relevant ethical requirements, including those of independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Among the matters that have been communicated to the Group's audit committee, we
determine those that have been of the greatest significance in the audit of the financial
statements for the current period and that are, conseguently, the key issues of the audit.

We describe these matters in our audit report unless legal or regulatory provisions
prohibit public disclosure of the matter.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Additional report to the Parent’s Audif Committee

The opinion expressed in this report is consistent with that expressed in our additional
report to the Parent’s Audit Committee dated April 28, 2023.
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Contract period

The Extraordinary General Shareholders' Mesting held on November 25, 2022 appointed
us as auditors for a period of 3 years from the year ended December 31, 2022,

Previously, we were appointed by resolution of the General Shareholders’ Meeting for the
three-year period and we have been auditing the accounts uninterruptedly since the year
ended December 31, 2007, and the Parent Company has been a Public Interest Entity
{PIE} since 2015,

Services provided

The services, other than the audit of accounts, provided to the Group are detailed in
Mote 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

BDO Auditores, S.L.P. (ROAC n® 51273)

- —Ramén Refer Rull (ROAC 16.867)
< Partner

April 28, 2023
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AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR
THE PERIOD ENDED ON DECEMBER 31, 2022
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LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(Expressed in Euros)

Notes th the

| Consolidated e
[ASSETS Annual Acconnts 3z 322021
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 11.489.218,96 12,01 6.175,20
Intnugible assets Mote 5 10.376.306,13 1103152590
Goodwll on eonsolidation 3.951.238,53 4.610.289,09
Fescarch 2.554.503,16 2.277.036,10
Indusirial proparty G%,025.45 G5, 124,55
ither intangible assol 1. 156,338,599 3479076, 16
Tangible fixed assets Mote & 555,303,066 62650581
Lund and buildings 148.577,71 147.805.21
Technical installetions and other tangible Txed assets 349.345,35 421.380,00
Fixed nasets under construction ond pdvinees 57,380,680 37 380,60
Liong-term financial investments Maote 8 H3.294,04 i6.157,21
Deferred Tax Assets Mote 14 474.315,13 291.926,27
CURRENT ASSETS £.3065.246,31 11.459.992,86
Stocks 489,28
Trade and other réceivables 5.496.693,24 S.184.067,96
Client receivables for sales and services Mo 8.2 £.358.192,14 4.368 442,08
Sundry debtors MNote 8.2 107.33930 703031
Stalf Mota 8.2 306542 108405
Current tax asscls Moie 14 #41.283.21 603,755,60
Cither receivables from Poblic Authoritiey Mote 14 186.793,11 13575492
Shori-ferm financial assels Note 8.2 #12.373,00 12,022,000
Short-term acerualy X06.412,28 40667080
Cash and cash equivalents Mote 8.1 1.661.467,79 5.056.742,82
Cash 166046779 5.050.742,82
TOTAL ASSETS 19.855.165,27 23A476168,15
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LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A.

AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

{Expressed in Euros)

| “Nofey fo fhe
N il oW 'Consolidaied Annual L. e
EOUITY AND LIABILITIES Acegunts 31272022 L2021
EQUITY SAT2.T50,63 673153693
Equity 5,753 500,64 6.727.957,69
Capital Mote 12.1 I20998.86 32099886
Share Capital 320.998.86 J20.008. 86
Issue Premiom Miote 12.3 5244 344,28 5.244.344,28
Reserves Mote 12,2 LARZO0T 47 1.935.015,50
Legal and statutory 64, 195,77 64.199.77
Oither Reserves 231870770 IBTORIS T3
{Shares and own holdings in equity) Mote 12.4 (LT3L481,07) {1.682.884,76)
Firiancial year vesull
attributed to the parent company Note 18 (462 968.90) a11.483.81
Consolidated Losses and Profits (514.936,11) B75.667.33
{Minovity intorest losses and profils) 5196721 3581648
Addjustments for changes in value 11.5735,14 ATA08.7S
Minority interests Nate 4 (92.414,15) (33.519.51)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 6.813.623,00 B.610.096.44
Long-term debts 813.623,00 8.610.096,44
Diebts with credit institulions Mate .1 5.741.553.64 689404841
Uither financial liabililies Mote 9.1 [.07A06e931 17 16.048,03
CURRENT LIARILITIES T.368.782,64 B 13453478
Short-term provisions 17.602,52 J8.021,23
Chher provisions 17,602,352 3802123
Short-terms debis Note 9.1 4,286.769,65 4.565.339,51
[rabts with ceedit institutions FIRT.61202 1.940.250,31
{Oiher financial liabilitizs 1.099.157.63 262510020
Trade and other payables 3.022,624,39 AN 154,04
Supplicrs Mote 9.1 L 9a8 97004 22237807
Sundry ereditons Mote 0.1 47399082 | ATE 005,69
StafT (remureration payable) Mote 5, | 17.622. 82 [ 1eh. 206,30
Cither debis with Public Authoritics Mote 14 503,033,444 598.931,70
Acbvanees from clients MNote 9,1 158.997.27 11763228
Short-term accrunls A1.786,07 -
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITTES 149.855.165,27 23.476.168,15
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LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED INCOME AND EXPENSES STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON DECEBER 31, 2022 AND 2021
{Expressed in Euros)

' Notes o the

N .. oy Consolidated

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTS “Annual Neootmiy 2022 2021

Met turnover Note 15.a 066 44 17.974.836,76
Work performed by the Company for ity assets Mote & LIS6.398,38 T15.602,22
Supplics Note 15.h (9.924.608,74) (R.616.261,33)
Ciornids consumed (9,974,608, 74) (B.616.261,33)
Other operaling incime 64.576,62 47,709,776
Stafl expenses (6.340.132,32) [eh IR 564,00}
Wags, salaties and the ke (h913.270.48) (3.3E1.695.15)
Tringe benefits Mote 15,0 (LA26B5L84) FOOEBT3 S}
Other operating expenses {A6H1.463,84) (4A76.533,44)
External charpes for services {3411.202,.24) (3.22R.005,28)
Taxes {97.553,0:) (a413,37)
Losses, Invpairment and chanpe in trade provisions (172, 708.56) {F79.49:4.91)
Amortization of fixed assets MNotes 5 and 6 (2.073.247,58) {1.257.358,53)
Impairment and resalts of disposals of xed assets (194.391,16) (. 146,92)
Other earnings {1.555,02) (765090
OPERATING EARNIGS (323.732322) 1.1254660,21
Finaneial income Mote 15.4 559,58 H14,19
Financial expenses Mote 15.d {166.415,99) (BS.040,40)
Exchange differences Mote 15,4 (d5.912,98) (T.989,05)
FINANCIAL EARNINGS (211.769,39) (92.815.26)
PRE-TAX EARNINGS (535.501,62) 1.032.644.95
Profil tax Note 14 20.565,50 (156.977,62)
FINANCIAL YEAR'S EARNINGS Nate 18 (514.936,11) 875.667,33
Résult attributed to the Parent Company {462,968,90) 911.483.81
Result attributed to minority interests (51.967,21) (35.816.48)
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LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, 8.A.

AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN E

Uy

A) CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF RECOGNISED

INCOME AND EXPENSE FOR THE FINANCIAL YEARS 2022 AND 2021

{Expressed in Euros)

2022 2021
CONSOLIDATED RESULT FOR THE YEAR {514.936,11) H75.66T7,33
Income and expenses recognised
directly to equity
Conversion differences {32.653,04) (G8.961,94)
TOTAL INCORE AND EXPENSE RECOGNISED -
DIRECTLY IN EQUITY CONSOLIDATED EQUITY (32.653,04) {69.961,94)
Transfers to the profit and loss acconnt
TOTAL TRANSFERS TO CONSOLIDATED
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT - -
TOTAL RECOGNISED CONSOLIDATED
CONSOLIDATIED RECOGNISED i
INCOME AND EXPENSES [547.589,15) 505.705,39
Totl ingome and expensses
attributabie (o the Parent Company (d82.367.08) BOOB19.2]
Total income und expenses attributed (o minarity interests (65,222.07) (55.113.82)
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Cansalicated Anmual Accownts of Leidanenvorks Stevely Telemitics, SA4and Subsidiaries Firgmededd Year 2122

LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A.

AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FORTHE YEAR 2022 AND 2021

(Expressed in Euros)

1] 2021
CASH TLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES THO000,55 T51.326.54
Flmncial year's pre-tax enrnings [S35.501,62) 103264495
Adjustments i enrnings 60605537 151382300
FFixedd agset amonisation TOTY 240 58 | 257358 53
Valuation changes for inpEiiment | T2 70856 I TR0 0]
Change in provisions - {36,659 Do)
Gl awl logses an derecognition and disposal of Tixed assels 194 246,82 ERET R
Finanainl mogme (555 58) (814,09
Financizl expenszes | s 415 59 10529679
Chmiges in ewrvent capital {T10.349,.02) (B 14 H594,81)
Stacks 4528 (480 28)
Dietrars end other stcotnts receivable {242.050.58) (LI 519,18)
Cithor curent as=e1s 10 258,52 (86,572 6T)
Trade pavables and athor pecounts paynhie (504,529 65) 570434 03
Chheer eurrrent Habilities 41.786.07 -
Change in fair value of fisaneial inatrements {18.303,57) {179,738 603
Other cnsh flow Trom aperating activities (565.207,28) (980244610
Interost poyments (166.441599) (105,296,749
Receipts of interests 350 58 E14,14
Receipts (payments) for profit ax (390 350.87) (RIS TR2.010
CASH FLOW TROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES {1,539.204.56) {R.SE0.017,00)
Payments for investments (1.575.567A47) (%,(F23.883,53)
Intangible assats: {1 463438 35} (8554811 80)
Tangible assets 194, 2: 1 U%) (469071 6d)
[her financial pssels {IT.487,84) -
Divestment procecds Ji, 362,91 403, 805.84
Intnngible kssels 36,302 91 1493540
Fungible dssets - 12874
Cther financil assets - 44564310
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES [2o608.071.00) BR00.2R.36
Receipts ind payments for equity instruments [328,000,74) {1, 109.001,66)
Disposals {Acquisitions) of own eguity insments (A28.000,74) (11090601 56}

Receipts und payments for financial-lability instriments

Fsswanee
Amounis oweil 1o cradit ingtitufions
Uihers

Regrapmiend anad peaetiseifon off
Amaunts owed To credil institulions
{Hhers

Payments for dividends and remuneratlon of other equily
instrumoents
Dividends

NET INCREASEMECREASE OF
CASHLANTY CASH EOUIVALENTS

Cash and gash equivalents gt start of the Fnencial year
Cash and cash equivalents ol end of the Onancisl year

{2.075.063,30)
1, 1O, 000, 00
|1 G, 00 0

(3 1T5063,30)
(1005 142,01
[2.169.921,25)

(245005,
(2443 00,593
(3.396,275,03)

S56.742,82
|.660 467,79

10,165.315,82
10,970,408, 10
5.8 10,000 01}
4160408, L0

{B05.092,28)
(805092 28)

(247,031,807
(24703150
Lo0ks03.21

4 0T6, 1455
5.056,142,82




Consolidaied Al Acconntr of Dleidanetiorks Serveis Telemidtics, S.A.and Subsidiaries Financial Veer 2022 i

LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2022

NOTE 1. INCORPORATION, ACTIVITIES AND LEGAL SYSTEM OF THE PARENT
COMPANY

a) Incorporation and registered Office of the Parent Company

LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S. A. (hereinafter "the Company"), was
incorporated in Lleida on 30 January 1995. On October 7,2017, the Company approved the
change of its registered office located in General Lacy, number 42, Planta Baja - Local I,
Madrid. In the previous year its registered office was located in the Parc Cientific i Tecnoldgic
Agroalimentari de Lleida, Edificio H1, Planta 2, in Lleida, On 26 October 2021, the board of
directors resolved to transfer the company's registered office to Calle Tellez, 56 Local C in
Madrid.

On June 30, 2011, the General Shareholders' Meeting resolved the transformation [rom a
Limited Company to a Public Limited Company. On December 12, 2011, the agreement
reached at the aforementioned meeting was submitted to the Mercantile Registry on February
17,2012,

b) Activity of the Parent Company

| Its activity consists of acting as a teleoperator of short message service (SMS) management
services via the Internet, notification and electronic contracting services, as well as any other
activity related to the aforementioned corporate purpose.

¢) Activities of the Group Companies

Main activity of the subsidiaries consists in the provision of telecommunications services, the
development of programs, the sending of text messages and electronic mail, and the provision
of study services and analysis of compuler processes in general.

d) Legal System of the Parent Company

Parent Company is governed by its Articles ol Association and by the current Corporate
Enterprises Act.

¢) Quotation in Stock Markets

On June 1%, 2015, the Parent Company approved at the Sharcholders” Meeting the request for
incorporation into the Alternative Stock Market, currently called BME Growth, of all the shares
of the Parent Company.
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On October Tth, 2015, the Board of Directors of Bolsas y Mercados Espaiioles, Sistemas de
Negociacion, S.A., approved the incorporation of 16.049.943 shares of 0,02 euros nominal
value each into the segment of companies in expansion of the Alternative Stock Market,
effective as of October 9, 2015, On November 7, 2015, the Parent Company changed its
Registered Advisor, appointing GVC GAESCO VALORES SV, S.A. On December 19, 2018,
the Company was listed on Eutonext Growth Paris under the dual listing system, with Invest
Securities being the Listing Sponsor. On November 2, 2020, the Company was listed on the
OTCOX market in New York. On September 29, 2021, the company changed its liquidity
provider, naming Selventis A.Y., 8.A,

f) Lffect of the conflict in Ukraine

Since February 2022, there has been a conflict in Europe between the nations of Russia and
Ukraine. In this sense. the possible effects on the economy in general and on the Group in
particular that this conflict may hiave must be taken into account. The Board of Directors of the
Parent Company considers that the main effect that this event has had on the Company's figures
has been the increase in electricity prices, whose impact on the company's figures has been an
inciease of 45 thousands of euros on the expense in the current financial year, Additionally,
although the Board of Directors of the Parent Company does not consider that there is a risk of
continuity in its activity at the close of December 31, 2022, it must constantly be aware of their
evolution and their economic effects in the evaluation of future estimates, the effects of which
would be recorded prospectively.

1.1) Group Companies

The Parent Company holds, directly, investments in different national and international
companies, and controls, directly, these companies. On January 1%, 2016 the first consolidation
of the Group Companies was carried out.

Group Companies included in the Consolidation Perimeter

The breakdown of the Group Companies included in the consolidation perimeter as of
December 31, 2022 is the following:

| Pércentage Applicd Method of
' of Holding ~ Consalidation '
Group Licidanctworks Servels Telematics, S.A.

which matnlaing the folloawing investments

Lieidanctwarks Serveis Telematics, LTD 1004 Integmacitn global
Lieicanet LISA Inc 1% Ttegracicn global
Lieidanet Homluras, SA 0% Integracion global
LLegidanet Dominicana, SRL 99,98% Iniepricion ghobwml
Lleida SAS L0 Tniegracidin global
Listda Chile 5I'A Lo Intageaciin plobal
Lleidanet do Brasil Lida TR Imtegraciin plobal
Lleidanet Guatemala B Integracion global
Portabitidades Espafiolas, S.L.LL 1004 Integracion global
Lisidanet Costy Rica 1% Infegracitn global
Lleidanet Pard 10044 Integracion global
Lleidla Information Technology Metwork Services 408 Integricion global
Lleidanet South Africa L0, Iniegracion glabal
Indenova, 5.1 100 Integraciin global

Lleidanat Fndia 253% Puesta en equivalencin



Cansolidaied dnmel Aceawts of Leidaroavarks Serveis Telematics, S.A.and Subsidiares Fvancial Year 2022 9

The financial year of the Parent Company and the Subsidiaries begins on Ist of January and
ends on 31st of December of each year. The last Annual Accounts of the Parent Company and
its Subsidiaries drawn up correspond to the financial year ended on December 31, 2022,

Detail of activities and registered office of the Subsidiaries included in the perimeter of
consolidation as of December 31, 2022, is indicated below:

Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, LTD

Incorporated on December 28, 2005 in Dublin, with its registered office in Birchin Court 20,
Birchin Lane London (United Kingdom), Its main activity is as operator,

Llgidanet USA Ine,

Incorporated on May 12, 2009 and its registered office is at 2719 Hollywood Boulevard Street
21 FL33020, Hollywood. Tts main activity is as operator, On June 30, 2013 a capital increase
was made in Lleidanet USA Ine. for 397.515,00 euros which Lleidanetworks Serveis
Telematics, S.A. subscribed in entirely.

Lleidanet Honduras, 5.4,

Its registered office in Tegucigalpa (Honduras), it was incorporated on January 11, 2012
subscribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A., 175 shares out of a total amount of 250
that were issued. Its main activity consists on being SMS operator, based on an interconnection
network with the fixed and mobile operations of the Republic of Honduras,

Lleidanet Dominicana, S.R.L.

Headquartered in Santo Domingo (Dominican Republic), was incorporated on June 26, 2012
subscribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A., 4,999 shares of a total of 5.000 that were
issued, Tts main activity is based on the dissemination of telematics systems. On December 28,
2020, was approved an increase in capital of 4,000 new shares subscribed in full by
Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A.

Lleida SAS

With its registered office in Bogotd (Colombia), it was incorporated on November 16; 2012
subscribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A., 100 shares out of a total of 100 that were
issued, lts main activity is based on the dissemination of telematics systems. On 15 Tune 2018,
Lieidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A. fully subscribed a capital increase in Lleida SAS
amounting to 95.802 euros. On December 30, 2020, a capital increase was carried out in Lleida
SAS in the amount of 48.000 euros subscribed in full by Lleidanetworks Serveis Telemdtics,
SA

Llgida Chile SPA

With its registered office in Santiago (Chile), it was incorporated on March 12, 2013,
subscribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, SA, 200 shares out of a total of 200 that were
issued. [ts main activity is based on the provision, organization and commercialization of
telecommunications services.
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With its registered office in New Delhi (India), it was incorporated on January 7, 2013
subscribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A., 12,500 shares out of a total af 50,000
that were issued. Its main activity is the ereation of @ telecommunications operator in India, as
well as offering VAS services, including SMS, MMS, and UMS and other types of messaging,

Lleidanet do Brasil Lida

With its registered office in Sao Paulo (Brazil), it was incorporated on October 2, 2013
subscribing, Llcidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A., 329 shares out ol a total of 330 that were
issued. Its main activity is based on the provision of telecommunication services, program
development, sending of text messages and electronic mail and the provision of services of
study and analysis of computer processes in general.

|.leidanet Guatemala, Sociedad Anonima

With its registered office in Guatemala (Guatemala), it was incorporated on November 7, 2013
subseribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A., 4,800 shares out of a total of 6,000
issued. 1ts main activity is the provision, organization and commercialization of
telecommunication services and activities such as mobile messaging services (SMS and MMS),
carriers, etc., the creation, generation and exploitation of information and communication
technologies and the provision of consulting and advisory services on these matters.

Portabilidades Espafiolas. S.L.U.

Incorporated on December 4, 2015, Lleidanctworks Serveis Telematicos S.A., representing
100% of the share capital of 3,000 shares for a total value of euros 3,000, Its corporate purpose
is the commercialization of services based on numerical portability data to telecommunications
opetators for the routing of telephone traffic and short text messages. In the previous fiscal year
a capital increase was carried out for an amount of 10,000 euros, fully subscribed by
Lleidanetworks Serveis Telemitics, S.A.

Lleidanet Costa Rica Empresa Individual de Responsabilidad Limitada

On March 31, 2016, the Parent acquires from D. Francisco José Sapena Soler 100% of this
Company for the amount of 16.06 euros, Its main activity is the provision, organization and
commercialization of telecommunication services and activities such as mobile messaging
services (SMS and MMS), carriers, etc., the creation, generation and exploitation of information
and communication technologies and the provision of consulting and advisory seryices on these
matters.

|leidanet South Aflrica

On September 21, 2020, the Company was incorporated Lleidanet South Africa with registered
office in Johanneshurg (South Africa), subseribing 100% of the shares of this company.
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Lleidanet Pert
With registered office at Cafion del Pato No. 103, Lima (Peru).

On August 25, 2016, the Parent Company made a contribution of 268.09 euros for the
incorporation of said company. Its main activity is the provision, organization and
commercialization of telecommunication services and activities such as mobile messaging
services (SMS and MMS), carriers, etc., the creation, generation and exploitation of information
and communication technologies and the provision of consulting and advisery services on these
matters. On February 21, 2020 and December 28, 2020, capital increases were carried out by
offsetting receivables held with the Parent Company for amounts of 104.283 and 33.637 euros,
respectively. On 20 December 2021, a capital increase of Euros 44.309,84 was carried out by
offsetting receivables from the Parent company.

Lleida Information Technology Network Services

On October 1, 2020, the Company incorporated the company in the United Arab Emirates with
the partner Adil Ismail Ali Al Fahem, with a share capital of 300 shares, 147 of which are
subscribed by Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A. and which correspond to 49% of the
share capital of the incorporated company.

[ndenova, S5.L.
On 30 November 2021, the Company acquires 100% of the shares of Indenova, S.L., with

registered office at Calle Traginers, 14 - 2° B, Valencia, for a cost of 7,100.000,00 euros.

NOTE 2. PRESENTATION BASIS OF CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

a) True and Fair View

The attached Consolidated Annual Accounts for the year 2022 have been prepared based on the
accounting records of the different companies that make up the Group, whose respective Annual
Accounts are prepared in accordance with current commercial legislation and the standards
established in the approved General Accounting Plan. by Royal Decree 15142007, of
November 16, applying the modifications introduced to it by Royal Decree 11592010, of
September 17, and Royal Decree 602/2016, of December 2 and Royal Decree 1/2021, of
January 12, in the case of Spanish companies, and in accordance with the regulations applicable
in the rest of the countries where the companies that make up the Consolidated Group are
located, and are presented in accordance with the provisions of Royal Decree 1159/ 2010 of
September 17, in order to show the true image of the assets, the financial situation and the
consolidated results, as well as the veracity of the incorporated flows in the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows,

b) Presentation Currency

In accordance with the applicable laws and regulations on accounting, the Consolidated Annual
Accounts are expressed in euros.
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¢) Critical Aspects of Uncertainties Valuation and Estimation

In preparing the accompanying consolidated annual aceounts, estimates were made by the
Parent Company’s Board of Directors in order to measure certain of the assets, liabilities,
incomie and expenses reported herein. The estimates and criteria relate to:

- Reasonableness of capitalisation and recoverability of research projects.

- Reasonableness of the recognition and recoverability of the goodwill arising from the
acquisition of Indenova, S.L, (see note 2.e)

Although these estimates have been made on the basis of the best information available at year-
end 2022, it is possible that future events may make it necessary to change these estimates
(upwards or downwards) in future years, which would be done prospectively, recognising the
effects of the change in estimate in the corresponding income statement.

The Parent Company's Board of Directors considers that there are no significant uncertainties
or aspects about the [uture that could entail a significant risk that could lead to significant
changes in the value of assets and liabilities in the following year,

d) Comparison of the Information

The Dircetors present, for comparative purposes, with cach of the items of the Consolidated
Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, the Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year, in addition to the figures for
the year 2022 those corresponding to the previous year. The items of both exercises are comparable
and hemogeneous.

¢) Responsibility for the Information given and the Estimates made

For the preparation of the Consolidated Annual Accounts estimates have been used in order to
value some of the assets, liabilities, incomes, expenses and compromises that are registered,
and that, basically, these estimations are referred to the evaluation of losses by impairment of
certain assets, the useful life of non-current assets and the probability of occurrence of
provisions (see section ¢).

In November 2021, following the acquisition of the company Indenova, S.L., goodwill of 4,7
million euros has been generated. Indenova's main assets are its assets, as reflected in its balance
sheet. Indenova has a brand image that is recognised both nationally and internationally, and a
recurring customer base that values its services. Its R&D developments will enable new uses
of its services, not only for its customer base, but will also be a differentiating element in the
Group's R&D strategy. They have key personnel, that is maintained within the Lleida.net Group
and are members of the management committee and help to achieve the objectives set by the
Board of Directors of the Parent Company of the Group. With the acquisition of Indenova,
synergies in sales are achieved, given that Indenova and the other companies of the Group have
very few shared customers. Indenova will be able to increase its sales by selling its products to
Llgida.net customers.
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The Parent Company's Board of Directors has performed the analysis of the recoverability of
the aforementioned goodwill on consolidation, using cash flows based on sales projections for
the period 2023-2027. According to management, these projections are based on the budget for
20123, the degree of conipliance with the budget at the date of formulation of these Consolidated
Financial Statements and management's best expectations for the business until 2027 for the
corresponding analysis of possible impairment at 31 December 2022. Sales growth has been
estimated at 61%, 14%, 12%, 10% and 8% respectively for each of the next 5 years. Cash flows
have also been discounted using the average cost of funds after tax. The discount rate used was
17% and a perpetual income of 2.5% was estimated.

As a result of the foregoing, the Parent Company's Board of Directors has considered impairing
the goodwill in consolidation in the current year by Furos 190 thousand euros (see Note 5)
based on the expectations of cash flow generation forecast for the coming years by this investee
company.

Notwithstanding that these estimates were made according to the best information available at
the time of the preparation of these Consolidated Annual Accounts, it is possible that future
events may occur that require their amendment for the next financial years; which would be
carried out prospectively, taking account of the effects of the estimate change on the
corresponding profit and loss aceounts.

) Correction of Krrors

The 2022 Annual Accounts do net include related adjustments as a result of errors detected in
previous years' annual accounts.

g) Fair value

It is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer or settle a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value shall
be determined without any deduction for transaction costs that might be incurred due to disposal
or disposition by other means. In no case shall the fair value result from a forced or urgent
transaction or as a consequence of an involuntary liquidation situation.

Fair value is estimated for a particular date and, because market conditions may change over
timie, that value may be inappropriate for another date. In addition, in estimating fair value, an
enterprise should take into account the conditions of the asset or liability that market
participants would take into account in pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

In estimating fair value, it is assumed that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
is carried oul:

a) Between interested and duly informed parties, in an arm's length transaction,

b) In the main market of the asset or liability, understood as the market with the highest
volume and level of activity, or

¢) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market to which the
company has access for the asset or liability, understood as the one that maximizes the
amount that would be received for the sale of the asset or minimizes the amount that would
be paid for the transfer of the liability, after taking into account transaction costs and
transportation expenses.
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In general, fair value is calculated by reference to a reliable market value,

For those items for which there is no active market, the fair value will be obtained, where
appropriate, through the application of valuation models and techniques.

The fair value of a financial instrument must consider, among other things, the credit risk and,
in the specific case of a financial liability, the company's default risk. which includes, among
other components, its own credit risk. However, no adjustments for volume or market capacity
should be made to estimate the fair value.

NOTE 3. RECOGNITION AND VALUATION STANDARDS

The principal valuation standards used by the Group in the drafting of its Consolidated Annual
Accounts, in accordance with those established by the General Accounting Plan, were as
follows:

a) Consolidation Principles

The consolidation of the Annual Accounts of Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A. with the
Annual Accounts of its investee companies mentioned in Notes 1.1 and 2, was carried out using
the following methods:

1. Application of the global integration method for all Group companies, i.e, those over which
it as effective control,

2. Application of the equity method as equivalence for associated companies, i.e. those over
which a notable influence is exercised in lerms of management but in which there is no
majority vote or joint management with third parties.

The consolidation of the operations of Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A. with those of
the aforementioned subsidiaries was performed according to the following basic principles:

- The criteria used in formulation of the Balance Sheets, the Profit and Loss Account and the
Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash-Flow Statements for each one of the consolidated
companies are, generally, and in their basic aspects, homogenous.

- The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow
include all adjustments and eliminations of the consolidation process, as well as relevant
valuation homogenizations to reconcile balances and transactions between the consolidating
companies.

- Balances and transactions between consolidated companies were climinated in the
consolidation process. The credits and debts with group, affiliated and associated companies
which have been excluded from the consolidation are presented in the corresponding
headings of the assets and liabilities headings of the Consolidated Balance Sheet.
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- The deletion of Subsidiary equity investment was conducted by compensating the
shareholding of the Parent Company with the proportional part of the net equity of the
subsidiaries which is represented by the shareholding on the date of the first consolidation.
The first consolidation differences were treated as follows:

a) Positive differences which cannot be allocated to the equity elements of the Subsidiaries
were included in the "Consolidation Goodwill" heading of the Consolidated Balance
Sheet. The impairment losses must be recognized in the Consolidated Profit and [oss
Account and are irreversible

b) Negative differences, obtained as first consolidation, are recognized as reserves for the
year considering that the group already existed previously in the different subgroups
contributed to the Parent Company.

- The consolidated income For the financial year shows the part that may be attributed to the
Parent Company, comprised of the income obtained by the latter plus the corresponding
pairt, by virtue of the financial shareholding, of the income obtained by the invested
companies

- The shareholding value of the minority interests in the equity and the attribution of income
in the consolidated subsidiaries is presented in the “Minority Interest™ heading of the Equity
of the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The value breakdown of these shareholdings is presented
in Note 4,

b) Intangible Fixed Assets

Assets included in intangible fixed assets are valued by their cost, whether purchase price or
production cost, reduced by the corresponding accumulated amortization and losses from any
impairment which, where appropriate, has occurred.

The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful
life. The amortisation charge for each period is recognised in profit or loss.

Research and Development Costs

Capitalized research and development costs are specifically individualized for projects and their
costs are clearly established so they can be spread over time. Similarly, Management the Group
has substantial grounds for expecting the technical success and the financial and commercial
profitability of these projects,

Research and development costs that appear as assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over
their useful life, at an annual rate of 20%, and always within a period of 5 years.

As soon as there are reasonable doubts over the technical suiccess or financial and commercial
profitability of a project, the values recorded in the asset that apply to it are directly allocated
to the financial year's losses.
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Computer Applications

Licenses for computer applications purchased from third parties are capitalized on the basis of
the costs incurred for purchasing.

Computer applications are amortized on a straight-line basis throughout their useful lives, at an
annual rate of 33%.

Maintenance expenses for computer applications incurred during the financial year are
recognized in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account,

Indusirial Property

Corresponds to the capitalized development expenses for which the relevant patent or similar
has been obtained, and includes the registration and formalization cests for the industrial
property, as well as the costs for purchasing the corresponding rights from third parties.

During all these years, the Group has been able to develop methods and unique technologies in
its sector by continuous investment in research and development. The result of this effort has
been the publication of patents at European, American and PCT levels, putting in value the
effort developed during these last years. These patents allow the Group to license this
technology to third parties and protect it against possible copies of other actors in the sector,
less scrupulous when creating original models,

Consolidation Goodwill

This item includes positive differences between the equity of subsidiaries attributable to the
Parent Company and the equity interest in the Parent Company at the date of first consolidation,
which could not be attributed to specific assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries.

Goodwill is amartised over ten years and is recovered on a straight-line basis. In addition,
goodwill is reviewed annually for impairment and is recognised in the balance sheet at cost less
amortisation and, where applicable, accumulated impairment losses.

In order to check for impairment, at the end of each year an analysis is made of the value of
each of the investees that have generated them, based on discounted expected cash flows.

¢) Tangible Fixed Assets

Tangible fixed assets are valued by their acquisition price or production cost, net of the
corresponding accumulated amottization and, where appropriate, of the accumulated value of
the recognized allowances for impairment.

Repair and maintenance expenses incurred during the financial year are debited in the
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account. Costs for renovating, extending or impraving intangible
fixed assets, representing an increase in capacity, productivity or lengthening of useful life, are
capitalized as a higher value of the corresponding assets, once the book values of the replaced
itemns have been de-recognized.
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Tangible fixed assets, net of their residual value, where appropriate, are amortized by a straight-
line-basis distribution of the various items that constitute these fixed assets over the years of
estimated useful life making up the period in which the Group hopes Lo use them, according to
the following table:

| _Annual Iistimated Yenrs
Percentage “of Useful Life

Buildings 2,50 i

Technical facilities 8-10 12,5010

Machinery 20-25 5-4

Other installations 10 0

Furniture - 15 10—6,67

Computer equipment 25-30 4-2

Other tangible fixed assels 15 6,67

The book value of a tangible fixed-asset item is de-recognized in the accounts through its
alienation or disposal by other means; or where no future economic benefits or profits are
expected o be obtained for its use, alienation or disposal by other means,

The loss or profit resulting from writing-off a tangible fixed-asset item is determined as the
difference between the net values, where appropriate, of the sales costs resulling from its
alienation or disposal by other means, where available, and the item's book value, and is
allocated to the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the financial year in which this
OCCUrS.

At the financial year's closure, the Group, assesses whether there are signs of impairment in a
tangible fixed-asset item or any cash-generating unit, in which case the recoverable amounts
are estimated and the necessary allowances are made.

An impairment loss is deemed to have oceurred in a tangible fixed-asset item where its book
value exceeds its recoverable value, this being understood as the higher value between its fair
value less the sales costs and its value in use.

Allowances for impairment in the tangible fixed-asset items, as well as their reversals where
the circumstances producing them cease, are recognized as an expense or income respectively

in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account.

d) Leases and Other Transactions of a Similar Nature

Operating-lease expenses incurred during the financial year are debited in the Consolidated
Profit and Loss Account.

¢) Financial Insiruments

The Company records under financial instruments those contracts that give rise to a financial
asset in one company and, simultaneously, to a financial liability or equity insteument in another
COMPEny.

A financial asset is any asset that is: cash, an equity instrument of another company, or involves
a contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset (a debt instrument), or to exchange
financial assets or liabilities with third parties on potentially favourable terms.
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Financial assets are classified for valuation purposes in the following category:
- Finaneial assets at amortised cost.
Financial instruments issued, incurred or assumed are classificd as financial liabilities, in whole
or in part, if, based on their economic substance, they create a direct or indirect contractual
abligation for the Company to deliver cash or another financial asset, or to exchange financial
assels or financial liabilities with third parties on potentially unfavourable terms,
Financial liabilities are classified for measurement purposes as follows:
- Financial liabilities at amortised cost.
This treatment applies to the Tollowing financial instruments:
a) Financial assets:
= (ash and cash equivalents;

- Trade receivables: trade receivables and sundry debtors;

- Receivables from third parties: such as financial loans and receivables, including those
arising from the sale of non-current assets;

- Other financial assets: such as deposits with credit institutions, loans and advances to
employees, guarantees and deposits given, dividends receivable and payments due on
own equity instruments.

b} Financial liabilities:

- Debts from commercial operations: suppliers and sundry creditors;

- Debts with credit institutions:

- Other financial linbilities: debts to third parties. such as financial loans and credits
received from persons or companies other than credit institutions, including those
arising from the purchase of non-current assets, guarantees and deposits received and

disbursements required by third parties on shareholdings.

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is included in this category, even when it is admitted to trading on an organised
market, if the Company holds the investment for the purpose of receiving cash Mows from the
performance of the contract and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, at specified
dates, 10 cash flows that are solely collections of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Contractual cash flows that are solely collections of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding are inherent in an arrangement that is in the nature of an ordinary or
common loan, notwithstanding that the transaction is arranged al a zero or below-market
interest rate.
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The following are classified in this category:

a) Trade receivables: financial assets arising from the sale of goods and the rendering of
services in connection with the sale of goods and the provision of services in the ordinary
course of business; and

b) Non-trade receivables: financial assets, other than equity instruments and derivatives, that
are not of a commercial substance and for which the amount receivable is fixed or

determinahle.

Financial liabilitics at amortised cost

The following are classified in this category:

a) ‘I'rade payables: financial liabilities arising from the purchase of goods and services in
connection with trading transactions; and

b) WNon-trade payables: financial liabilities which, not being derivative instruments, do not
arise from trade transactions, but arise from loans or credits received by the Company.

Initial measurement

The financial assets and liabilities included in this category are initially measured at fair value,
which is the transaction price and is equal to the fair value of the consideration given plus
directly attributable transaction costs.

Notwithstanding the above, trade receivables and payables maturing in less than one year that
do not bear contractual interest rates, as well as, where applicable, advances and loans to
employees, dividends receivable and payments required on equity instruments, the amount of
which is expected to be received in the short term, and payments required by third parties on
equity investments, the amount of which is expected to be paid in the short term, are measured
at nominal value when the effect of not discounting cash flows is not material.

Subsequent valuation

In subsequent valuations, both assets and liabilities are measured at amortised cost. Accrued
interest is recognised in the profit and loss account using the effective interest method.
Notwithstanding the above, receivables and payables maturing within one year that were
initially measured at nominal value continue to be measured at nominal value, unless, in the
case of receivables, they are impaired.

Impairment of financial assets at amortised cost

At least at year-end, the necessary impairment losses are recognised whenever there is objective
evidence that a financial asset, or a group of financial assets with similar risk characteristics
measured collectively, is impaired as a result of one or more events that occurred alter its initial
recognition and that cause a reduction or delay in the estimated future cash flows, which may
be caused by the insolvency of the debtor.
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The impairment loss on these [inancial assets is the difference between their carrying amount
and the present value of future cash flows, including, where applicable, those from the
realisation of collateral and personal guarantees, estimated to be generated, discounted at the
effective interest rate calculated at the time of initial recognition, For floating rate financial
assets, the effective interest rate at the reporting date is used in accordance with the contractual
terms.

Impairment losses, as well as reversals of impairment losses when the amount of the impairment
decreases due to a subsequent event, are recognised as an expense or income, respectively, in
the income statement. The reversal of impairment is limited to the carrying amount of the asset
that would have been recognised at the date of reversal had no impairment loss been recognised.

Reclassification of Financial Assets

When the Company changes the way in which it manages its financial assets to generate cash
flows, it reclassifies all affected assets in accordance with the criteria outlined above. The
reclassification is not a derecognition but a change in valuation criteria.

Derecopnition of Finaneial Assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset, or part of a financial asset, when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or have been transferred and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred, in circumstances that are assessed
by comparing the Company's exposure, before and after the transfer, to changes in the amounts
and timing of the net cash flows of the transferred asset. Substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset are deemed to have been transferred when its exposure to
such changes is no longer material in relation to the total change in the present value of the
future net cash flows associated with the financial asset.

When the financial asset is derecognised, the difference between the consideration received net
of attributable transaction costs, taking into account any new assct obtained less any liability
assumed, and the carrying amount of the financial asset determines the gain or loss arising on
derecognition and forms part of the profit or loss for the period in which the gain or loss arises.

The Company does not derecognise financial assets and recognises a financial liability for an
amount equal to the consideration received in transfers of financial assets in which it has
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, such as in bill discounting,
factoring with recourse, sales of financial assets under repurchase agreements at a fixed price
or at the sale price plus inierest and securitisations of financial assets in which the transferor
retains subordinated financing or other types of guarantees that absorb substantially all the
expected losses.
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Dereeognition ol financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability, or part of a financial liability, when the
obligation has been extinguished, i.e. when it has been satisfied. cancelled or has expired. It
also derecognises its own financial liabilities that it acquires, even if it intends to reposition
them in the future.

The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability or part of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid, including any costs or fees incurred and
including any asset transferved other than cash or liability assumed, is recognised in the income
statement in the period in which it occurs.

In the case of an exchange of debt instruments that do not have substantially different terms,
the original financial liability is not derecognised. Any transaction costs or fees incurred adjust
the carrying amount of the financial liability, From that date, the amortised cost of the financial
liability is determined by applying the effective interest rate that matches the carrying amount
of the financial liability with the cash flows payable under the new terms.

Own equity instruments

An equity instrument is any legal transaction that evidences, or reflects, a residual interest in
the assets of the issuing company after deducting all its liabilities.

In the event that the company enters into any transaction with its own equity instruments, the
amount of these instruments is recorded in equity, as a change in shareholders' equity, and in
no case may they be recognised as financial assets of the company and no profit or loss is
recorded in the profit and loss account.

Expenses arising from these transactions, including the costs of issuing these instruments, such
as lawyers', notaries' and registrars' fees; printing of reports, bulleting and securities; taxes;
advertising; commissions and other placement expenses, are recorded directly in equity as a
reduction in reserves.

Deposits given and received

Deposits or guarantees provided as security for certain obligations are measured at the amount
actually paid, which does not differ significantly from their fair value.

In the case of deposits given or received for operating leases or for the provision of services,
the difference between their fair value and the amount paid (e.g. because the deposit is long-
term and is not remunerated) is treated as an advance payment or collection for the lease or
provision of the service, which is taken to profit or loss over the period of the lease in
accordance with the standard on leases and similar transactions or over the period in which the
service is rendered in accordance with the standard on revenue from sales and services.

In estimating the fair value of the collateral, the remaining period is taken to be the minimum
committed contractual period during which the collateral cannol be repaid, without taking into
account the statistical behaviour of repayment.

Where the guarantee is short-term, discounted cash flows are not required if their effect is not
material.
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[) Transactions in Foreign Currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized by their exchange value in Euros, by using
the spot exchange-rate [or the dates on which they oceur.

On the close of each financial year, monetary items are valued by applying the average spot
exchange-rate on that date, Exchange differences, both positive and negative, which result from
this process, as well as those generated on selling off equity items, are recognized in the
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the financial year in which they arise.

g) Profit Tax

Profit tax is recognized in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account or directly in the
Consolidated Equity depending on where the gains or losses giving rise to it are recognized.
Profit tax for each financial year includes both current and deferred taxes, where appropriate.

The current tax amount is the sum to be paid by the companies as a result of the assessment
notices for the tax,

Differences between the book value of assets and liabilities, and their tax base, generate the
deferred tax asset or liability tax balances which are calculated using the expectled tax rates at
the time of their reversal, and under the method in which it can be reasonably expected 1o
recover or pay the asset or liability.

Variations arising during the financial year in deferred tax asset or liability are recognized either
in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account or direetly in the Consolidated Hquity, as
appropriate.

Deferred tax assets are only recognized insofar as it is probable that the company will have
future tax gains that allow these assets to be applied.

In each closing balance sheet the book value of the recognized deferred tax assets is analysed
and the necessary adjustments are made insofar as there are doubts over their future tax
recoverability. Likewise, in each closing non-recognized deferred taxes are assessed in the
balance sheet and these are subject to recognition to the extent that their recovery with future
tax benefits is probable,

h) Income and Expenses

The main services offered by the Group consist of SMS, notification, signature and ¢lectronic
contracting services.
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Revenue recognition for sales and services rendered

The Company recognises revenue in the ordinary course of business when (or as) control of the
committed goods or services is transferred to the customer. Al that time, the Company measures
revenue at the amount that reflects the consideration to which it expects to be entitled in
exchange for the goods or services,

Control of a good or service (an asset) refers to the ability to decide fully on the use of that item
of property, plant and equipment and to obtain substantially all of its remaining benefils,
Control includes the ability to prevent other entities from deciding on the use of the asset and
obtaining its benefits.

In order to apply this fundamental approach to revenue recognition, the Company follows a
comprehensive process consisting of the following successive steps:

a) Identify the contract(s) with the customer, understood as an agreement between two or
more parties that creates enforceable rights and ohligations for the parties.

b) Identify the obligation(s) to be fulfilled in the contract, representing commitments to
transfer goods or provide services to a customer.

¢) Determine the transaction price, or contract consideration, to which the firm expeets to be
entitled in exchange for the transfer of goods or provision of services committed to the
customer.

d) Allocate the transaction price to the obligations to be performed on the basis of the
individual selling prices of each separate good or service committed to in the contract or,
where appropriate, on ihe basis of an estimate of the selling price when the selling price is
not independently observable.

¢) Recognise revenue when (as) the company satisfies a committed obligation through the
transfer of a good or the rendering of a service; such satisfaction oceurs when the customer
ohtains control of that good or service, so that the amount of revenue recognised is the
amount allocated to the contractual obligation satisfied.

For each obligation to be fulfilled (delivery of goods or provision of services) identified, the
Company determines at the beginning of the contract whether the commitment undertaken is
fulfilled over time or at a specific point in time, As specified in note 15, the invoicing issued by
the Company is based on customer consumption of each product. In this regard, for all of the
Company's business lines, revenue is also recognised on a monthly basis based on the
consumption of each customer during the month in question.
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Fulfilment of the obligation at a specilic point in time

In cases where the transfer of control over the asset does not occur over time, the Company
recognises revenue using the criteria established for obligations that are discharged at a point
in time. To identify the specific point in time at which the customer obtains control of the asset
{generally an asset), the Company considers, among others, the following indicators:

a)  The customer assumes the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the asset. In
assessing this, the Company excludes any risk that gives rise to a separate obligation other
than a commitment to transfer the assel.

b)  The Company has transferred physical possession of the asset,

¢)  The customer has received (accepted) the asset in accordance with the contractual
specifications.

d)  The company has a collection right for transfering the asset.
e)  The customer has ownership of the asset.
Valuation

Revenue from the sale of goods and the rendering of services is measured at the monetary
amount or, where appropriate, the fair value of the consideration received or expected 1o be
received, which, in the absence of evidence to the contrary, is the agreed price of the assets to
be transferred to the customer, less: the amount of any discounts, rebates or other similar items
that the company may grant; and interest ineluded in the nominal amount of the receivables.

However, embedded interest on trade receivables maturing in less than one year that do not
have a contractual interest rate is included when the effect of not discounting cash flows is not
material. If applicable

Taxes levied on the delivery of goods and services that the company must pass on to third
parties, such as value added tax and excise duties, as well as amounts received on behalf of
third parties, are not part of revenue.

Where variable consideration exists, the Company takes into account in the measurement of
revenue the best estimate of the variable consideration if it is highly probable that there will not
be a significant reversal of the amount of revenue recognised when the ungertainty associated
with the consideration is subsequently resolved.

i) Provisions and Contingencies

Debentures existing at the close of the financial year, resulting from past events which may
oecasion loss in equity for the Group, and whose value and time of cancellation are
indeterminate, are recognized on the consolidated balance sheet as provisions and are valued
by the current value of the best possible estimate for the amount necessary to cancel the
obligation or transfer it Lo a third party,
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i) Grants, Donations and Legacies

Non-refundable capital grants, as well as donations and legacies, are valued by the fair value of
the amount granted or of the goods received. They are initially allocated directly as income in
the Consolidated equity and recognized in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account in
proportion to the amortization undergone over the period by the assets financed through these
erants, unloss these are non-depreciable assets, in which case they will be allocated to the
earnings of the financial year in which their alienation or de-recognition takes place.

Girants intended for cancelling debts are allocated as income for the financial year in which the
cancellation occurs, unléss they are received for a specific financing, in which case the

allocation is made according to the item that is finaneed.

Refundable grants are recognized as long-term debt convertible into subsidies until they beecome
non-refundable.

Operation grants are credited to the earnings of the financial year when they accrue.

k) Related-Party Transactions

In general, items forming the subject matter of a related-party transaction are initially
recognized by their fair value, The subsequent valuation is made in accordance with the
provisions laid down in the corresponding regulations.

1) Cash-Flow Statements

Cash-flow statements use the following expressions according to the meanings given below:

Cash and Equivalents: Cash is both cash in hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are
financial instruments forming part of the Group’s normal cash management, are convertible
into cash, have initial maturities no greater than three months and are subject to little significant
risk of change in their value.

Cash Stream-flows: inflows and outflows of cash or other equivalent resources, with the latter
being understood as investments having terms under three months, high liquidity and low risk
of changes in value.

Operating Activities: these are the activities that make up the principal source ol the Group's
ordinary income, as well as other activities that cannot be classified under investment or
financing.

Investment Aclivities: acquisition, alienation or disposal by other means of long-term assets
and other investments not included in cash or cash equivalents.

Financing Activities: activities that lead to changes in the size and composition of the equity
and financial liabilities.
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NOTE 4. MINORITY INTEREST

The breakdown of the value of minority interests in the equity of the consolidated subsidiaries
as the end of the {inancial year 2022, is as follows, in Euros:

Percentage of
minority.
intérests o
L shareholders | Tatdl Minority |
| Group Company . | [holdings) Rty Othiers Period resultss  inlekests
I leidemet Geatemala 0% 4.042.50 {263,.84) - 755,73
Llgidanet Honduras e - - - -
Lileidanet Brasil (0,019 {41, 163,82} 2.8659.63 (1Le85.3100 {4.00)
Licidanst Repillica Dominicana 0,03% (3.772.08) 244688 1.0649.31 {1.17)
Lleids Information Technology
Metwork Servicez (*) 1% (74.803.17) (5.976,14) {101 8546,55) (93,164, 71)

(92.414,15)

() Shareholders’ Bty ineluder o portion of austanding disbursements thar corvespond malndy 1o the Parent Company,
Vilich s win the total of Minority Inferests does not corvespand exactly 1o 4945 of the total Sharehalders' Equity showh
i the table below,

The breakdown of the value of minority interests in the equity of the consolidated subsidiaries
as the end of the financial year 2021, is as follows, in Euros:

Petcentige oF
 minority |
interests - |
0. % e shareholders. Tutal Minority
[ Group Company: (holdings) Equity Othérs  Period results. interests
Llzidanal Gualemala 200 404250 (324.94) - 703,51
Lleidanet Honduras A% = T 9 =
Lileidaneat Brasil 0,00% (38,000 84) T.203,12 (2.253,98) (3200
LLzidangt Repiblica Dominicans 0 02% (901454 734,21 201,50 (161
Ligicla Information Technology
Metwark Services (*) 519 (. 575, 12) 712079 (T0.228.05) (34.518,01)

(33.819,51)

™ Shareholders” Egulry lteludes o povtion af outstanding dishyrsements ihat corvespond mainly to the Parent Cougaiy,
wiricl is wihy the fotal of Minevity Interesis dees not earrespond svactly to 4 955 of the tofal Shaveholders’ Eguity ghawn
foi the table Belon,
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NOTE 5. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

The details and changes in intangible fixed assets throughout the financial year 2022 were as

follows, in euros:

Cuost:

Goodwill on cossalidution
Resenrch

Industnad Progerty

Computer applications

Advances for intangile ixed assets

Aceymulated amartization
ol 11 on consaludntion
izsearnch

Irdustrial Property
Computer gpplications

Impairment:
Cinodwall on consalidatmm

Intnngitle Fixed Asseds; Mot

Uizl Additlens Defecogeliion
4 88 409 58 - =
12372277 80 I.156 354,38 {5.107,39)
1.054 272,10 19 568 26 2
532126891 177.766,70 {9585,00)
587 d42.81 80,105,322 (32 323.70)
24.023,601,24) 1, 463,8538,56 (38.387,13)
(78.140.49) (468 442 96) x
(10085 341,70) (489211} L8 14
(50Y.147,35} (K6 34,07} -
{2,420 635,36) (492.717,78) 956,04
(12992165 30)  (LBSZA8782) Zzd22
- {190,207 60} -

1103152540 (618.856.86) (A6.362,51)

Wranslors B TTFT P
- 4 6EE 470 55
- 1352356879
55,367 .61 1 La0 207 97
25,054,090 5.5023.134.4%
(RO 4225} 554,800,582
= 25440, LIZ,63

(5486 98,45)
{10.93%,065,63)
{475.182,52)
(202 34T 30)

- (R HBEARES0)

- {193,207 60)

- 10,376.306,15

The additions in the year mainly relate to the R&D developments that the Company has made
in its San$ product lines as well as the investments made in patents to register the methodology

of these new products,

The details and changes in intangible fixed assets throughout the financial year 2021 were as

follows, in curos:

Cosir

Cioadwill on consefdation
Res=areh

Industrinl Property

Compuiter #pplication:
Advanees for intangible fived assets

Aceumulated wmorfizption
Goadivll on corsalidetion
Research

Industrial Property.
Compater apphications

Infnngilile Fixed Assels, Net

Goodwill

SuR0

17, 59345, 74
G2R.21E 54
27066109
5640, 399 44

13.412,624,85

(9,260,002 95)
(307.717,52)
(24080081}

{WATH511,28)

358301357

Periiileter
alilitima

| 6BEATDSY

462795101

41638059

(1 426.40576)
(1.426:403,76)
7,889,976,83

Additions De-Heengnition
TE2 8206 -
|4:9335 60 {14,935 ,60)
455 547 44 {52.800,63)

158 243 81 (9 {4652
1,350.658,91 (56.973,15)
(7814049 ::
[BE5.148,75) -
(81.430,03) -
(T 321,62 FE R
(1. 769040,8%) ALA8063
{417.381,98)  {24.082,52)

Tranlsfers,  31fize021

4.088.429,58
[2.372.277 A0
| (34 272,10

5321 268,51
SR 443,81

126:053,56
{136.053,56)
- 2R023.691,20

(75, 14i1,49)

- {10095 24, 70)

(389147, 55)

(2.4291535,56)

< (12992, 16530)

- 1103152590

On 30 November 2021 the Group acquired 100% of the shares of Indenova, S.L. for a cost of

7.100.000,00 euros.

In the current year, the Company has recognised goodwill on consolidation in the amount of
190 thousand euros (see Note 2.e and Note 21).

This goodwill is amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of 10 years.
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Fully-amortized and in-use items

The breakdown, by epigraphs, of the most significant assets which were fully-amortised and in
use as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, is the following, stating their cost values in Eutos:

Research
Patents

Computer applications

NOTE 6. TANGIBLE ASSETS

/1242022

9.263 012,83
108,806,531
1.404,021,42

10.775.840,78

aii12i2021

$.492.284,57
10.806,51
1L387.1 14,48

9.958.205,56

The details and changes in tangible fixed assets throughout the financial year 2022 were as

follows, in curos:

Cists

Fot aned biildimgs
Technical mnstallabions nnd
minchinery

Ohiher installagsons,

sl and Trniture

[latn processing cquipment
Cither langille fixed assets
Advanees for angile fived
nadits

Acenmulated amartization
Lanel nnd baildings
Technical instalistiong

e mnchinery

Cither installations,

tooisand furmitine

Dhala processing equipment
Cither tangitle fixed esets

Tnngilie Fixed Assaty, Ned

A
197 | 85,74
25T 006
fra9.830 20
G500 50

12. 746,77
5T 480,60
213954535

{4 380,53
{253 872 GE)
(280.038,77)
(918208 64)

(11,387 92)

{L512.079.54)

626,565,81

Perimiter
iililithg

4909 80

BE 351,28

64.241,08

(3.137.30)
{1.956,70)
{4, 1 E061)
(155874 ,88)
(16T 188.49)
(72,947 401)

Additling

(11.882,23)

(11L.B82,23)

11:E33.23

11.882.23

TDesrechgnitions

42 574,26

AZETHI6

(eh 2574 20

{42.574,26)

Trnmsfiers

(2214, 15

(221%,15)

300441

3804,41
1.685,26

A2

203.095.54
23139206
G99 830,28
1831814 06
12.746,77
5738060

2,261.259,31

{59,591 7,63)
(255 825.38)
(244.15%,3%)

CLEBLH61,14)

{11.387.92)

{1,706,955,65)

555,303,606

Due to the increase in Saa$ sales, investments have been made in servers for more storage
capacity. Investments have also been made in laptops during the financial year 2022



Consalidated Annnal Accants of Lleidanenvorks Serveis Telematics, S, and Subsidiaries Fi fneretil Yooy 2022 29

The details and changes in tangible fixed assets throughout the financial year 2021 were as
follows, in euros:

| o Ferifeter; it e ey
SALAZfN il R Adlditions Dicroetpnitions  Tronafies 31122021
[ ST
Land and baikdngz 199 18574 - - - - 1 b8
Techniea! mstallatwons wd
machinery 25739206 - - . - 257390 06
Cnhaer nstallntions,
tanls ond furnibere 1.1 18,89 232963247 AR TN (30 208, 55) - AO0 R30I
[nin precessing eguipment 63 a608T el ORI RS ] 2064357 {50267, 54) . Q500990
Ciilser tngibie Al assens o535, M 721098 . = - 1274677
Advnpees for tingible fixed nssens - = 57 38060 - - AT IR0 60
L2129, 393,35 ST TGS ASRDTIL 6 (80, 566,1) - 113054535
Accamulated nmortizatitng
Lond and badldings (el 2405,23) - (5.137.30 . - (49, 380,53)
Technicnl insballntsms
and machinery [246.191,35) - (7.681,33) - - (233 HT2 68
Oihwer fostallations,
tools ond fumiture (74,608 253 [219-88539) (12100 ,84) 20.556,7 * [2B0.03%77)
Dl precessing, equipment (5240, 340,02 (284913532 {16 638,71) L L HRe oo 1l 709307 (D18 298.64)
Oitlser tnngibie fixed nssets (3.956,7H - (308,053 - (A ERIS] (LL3BT 52}
{R93,3711,55) {508 020,71} (187.867,23) TT.2T8.05 - {LE12.979.54)
Tingible Fited Asscis, Net 335,022,810 12,725,714 IRED04.41 {3:287,14) . BL6.865.81

Fully-Amortized and in-Use Items

The breakdown, by epigraphs, of the most significant assets which were fully-amortised and in
use as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, is shown below stating their cost values in Euros:

312002 a2l
Technical installotions and machinery 229035,65 18891695
Oiher facilities and furniture 260.121,63 260.121,63
Diata processing equipment ET8304.67 (8357038
Cither lixed assets 3.087.87 3.087.87
1371.039,82 1.135.696,83

NOTE 7. LEASES AND OTHER OPERATIONS OF SIMILAR NATURE

7.1) Financial Leases (the Company as Lessee)

The Company has no assets financed by finance leases at 31 December 2022,

7.2) Operating Leases (the Company as Lessee)

The amount of the contingent payments recognized as an expense in the year 2022 is 308.075,17
euros (229.166,56 euros in the previous year). Corresponds basically to office rentals and
vehicle rentals.
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The following is the breakdown of the total amount of the minimum future payments
carresponding to the non-cancellable operating leases:

2022 2021
Up o | yvear 205.454.97 2209.464,78
Between | and 5 years [29.638.34 I RAE A
More of § yeas 538.94758 S2eh845.84
BT4.081,29 R55.355,33

NOTE 8. FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following is the breakdown of the long-term financial assets, in Euros:

Credits and Credits and |

Exuity Exuity Other Finaneial - Other Financial
Instruments instruments’ Agsers Assets: |
3111212022 311242021 3ii120022 31/12/2021
Financial assets at amortised cost {(Note §.2) - . TLT96,13 H5.659,30
Finnneial assets at fair
value through equity (Note 8.3) 10.497,21 197,91 - L
10,497,921 10:497,91 T72.796,13 55,659.30

The breakdown of the short-term financial assets, is as follows, in euros:

Credits and Other |
Dinancial Assets
Canizoa
Assets at foir valoe through the profit and loss: I 660,467,790 5,056,742,82
Cpsh or other Hagoid assets (Note 8.1) 166046779 3.056.742,82
Loans and receivable items (Mote 8.2) 5,280.989,93 525657944
Tatal 694145772 10.313.322,26

8.1) Assets at Fair Value through the Profit and 1.0ss

Cash and other Equivalent Liquid Assets

The detail of this assets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 is as follows, in euros:

Balance at Balange nt

3171212022 3zt
Current Accounis 1:654.851.90 300819136
Cash 3.615.39 N8.551 46

Tatal 1660467, 7Y 5.056.742:82
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8.2) Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

The composition of loans and receivable items as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 is as follows:

Balanée nt 31/12/2022. _ Bitlaneeat 317122021

Long-Term  ShortTern Long-Term ShortTerm:
Lioans and recelyabiles items
for commercinl fransactions
Casiumers . 4,358, 192,14 - 4,368.443,08
Debtors - 107,359,306 - 7503031
Totul loans and receivables items _
for commercial transactions - 4.465.551,51 = 444347339
Lasnns and receivibles for
non-commercial transactions
Staff - 306542 - LOR4,05
Short-léam deposits (*) . RI12.373.00 - a12.022,00
Securities and deposils T2.796,13 - 55.655,30 -
Futal lnans and receivables for _
non-tommercial transactions T2.796,13 1543842 55,659,300 £13.106,05
Total TL796,13 S5280.989,93 55.659,30 5.250,570,44

(%) Shewt-ferm depasits have amaturity to shovt-teem and agcrwe o market infevest rate.

Trade and other receivables include impairments due to insolvency risks, as detailed below:

Amount
Accnmulated impairment January 1, 2020 SO0.740,72
Impairment losses on trade receivables 28.093,31
Accumulated impairment end of financial year 2021 615.834,03
Impairment losses on trade receivables 4.652,52
Accumulated impairment end of financial year 2022 623.486,55

Additionally, the Group has impaired 172,708.56 euros, derecognising them directly from the
balance sheet.

8.3) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Shareholders' Equity

Corresponds to an investment made by the Group in previous yeats in IBAN Wallet, a global
platform, which links investors and loan applicants, with leading rates for both. The investment
amounts to 10,197,40 euros and corresponds to 0,38% of the capital stock.

There are no assets as collateral for loans.
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NOTE 9. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Detail of long-term financial liabilities, is as follows, in euros:

Dk 4 with eredit
. institutions

| 311212022

Finaneisl liahilitics at

31202021

‘amortised cost (Note 9.1) 5.741.553,69  6.894.048,41

Othert
Hinbilities

difzanze 3z

LO72.069,31  1.716.048,03

Detail of short-term financial liabilities, is as follows, in euros:

Thebs with credit institutions:

3111212022

Debits and payable Ttems
at amortised cost (Note 9.1)  3.187.612,02

9.1) Debits and Pavable ltems

31/12/2021

1.940.259,31  3.618.746,58 555732254

__ Othertiahilitics
3022

Stz

The breakdown as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 is as follows, in euros:

For commercial iransactions:

Suppliens

Creditors

Adlvances [rom costumers

Total balances for commercial transuctions
For non-commercial operalionsg:

Diehits with eredit nstitutions

Other (inancial linhilities

Oither debls

Diebits and puyvable items

Staff fremuncralion payahble]

Total balances for
non-caommercial operations

Total debis and payable items

Bilance sy of 3111202022

Long:Term

5.741.353.69
[.07Z.069.31

o H13.623.00

.813,623,00

6.813,623,00

~ Bhort-Terim

1,G6GEST0,04
373.998,82
L 58.997.27

.501.566,13

J.187.4612,02
1.099.159,63

4.246.769,63

17.622.82

4.304.39247

6.806.358,60

Tutal

Afizi0zz 3122021

681362300 B.010.096,44

Total

Jizizner S0

6.806,358,60 749758185

Balunee as of 31/12/2021

Long-Term

6804048,
1.7 1604803

HO10.096.44

S0 10096,

8.610.096,44

61009644

Shori=Term

1.222 378,07
1.478.005,69
117.632,28

2B18.016,04

|.940 25931
2.625.100,20

4.565.359,51
1 14206, 30

46756581

T.A497.581,85

749758185
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9.1.1) Debts with credit institutions

The breakdown of debts with credit institutions as of December 31, 2022 is as follows, in euros:

| Short-Term ‘Long-Ferm Taotal

Lasans 197149572 5.741.533,69 771304041
Credit policies L2161 16,30 - L2161 1650
J187.612,02 5.741.553,69 8.929.165,71

The breakdown of debts with credit institutions at December 31, 2021 is as follows, in euros:

Short=Term Liong-Term Total
Laoang 1,741.25%,31 6,494 0k 41 8.635.307,72
Credit policies 199.000,00 - | 99, 000,00
1.240.25%9,31 f.804.045.41 HA34.307,72

Loans

The detail of the bank loans as of December 31, 2022, expressed in Euros, is the following:

| I Amotit Pending
Litiang Last Maturity ‘granted closure:

Loan 24 (%) 15/10/20325 T 375,60 33.69%.00
Loan 38 1R/06/2023 195.000,00 2041503
Loan 38 0240772023 200000 2477317
Loan 40 2RA12/2023 00, 000,00 BI.97E.5%
Loan 41 32024 250,000,00 a4 B0 146
Liven 42 12042024 400,000,00 110.109,36
Loan 43 03/0572024 00 00,04 B7.905 84
Loan 44 Dk 2024 250,000, T7.63541
L 43 0042025 A00.000,00 236.243,00
Lodn 46 2042025 A00,000,00 230,430,544
Loan 47 OBA0L2025 A0 a0, a0 236.5333,39
Loan 48 SLA226 S00.00,00 32712795
Loan 49 RO 2028 1 200,000,050 D60.E56,61
Loai 56 SN0 1.200.000,00 2.565.865,12
Loan 51 L2027 1.250,000,00 L014.515,08
Lowan 52 B1/020028 U0 000,00 34593928
Layan 53 | &AOG 202D TO0.000,00 G77.620,76
Laan 54 31072023 413.829,24 30,571,77
Loon 33 80372023 200,000,060 17, 158,13
Loan 36 Q062026 | 50,000,000 132, 138,84
Liem 57 O 2028 250.000.00 23047807
Loan 58 20N 220.000,00 1&0.242 51
11.759.204,84 T. 71304961

(%1 It covresponds to @ loah grawed by the COTT
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The detail of the bank loans as of December 31, 2021, expressed in Euros, is the following:

e ] Amount Pending at
Loans ‘Layt Maturity. granted ‘closuie
Lioamn 2d (%) 15/ L0F2035 THATAA0 43.627,60
bLoon 36 [LEER R i FO00CHMR D0 SE.25Y )
Lisein 37 000z 150, 000,00 937500
[oan 38 [#/06/2023 153, 00000 Hl.620,92
Lian 3% QAT 2023 0, 000 00 66,329,07
Linan 410 ZRAT2023 A0, D00 162, 856,00
Lioan 41 290032024 250,000,000 115.518,23
Loan 42 12/0:52024 400,000,560 191.022,69
|ovam 43 {13/05/2024 lu‘}iﬂﬂﬂ,[!ﬂ 148 545 74
[oan dd (002024 250,000,060 128,121 46
Loan 45 I0A2025 00, 000,00 334.987,79
Loan 46 2200472025 A0HE 000,00 33509720
Loan 47 (02025 S0, D000 13515193
Loan 48 1032024 SO0.000,00 426, 189,63
Lovan 45 Qo7 2028 1,200,000, H) 112085699
Loan 56 ITA0T2028 E,E_Utl.ﬂﬂllw 301418842
Loan 51 Q9 02027 | 250,000,060 L216.577 45
Loan 52 032022 350,000,00 [ 8.200,00
Lavan 54 3072023 415.829.24 136,000,
Laan 55 18/M3/2023 00,000, 00 ¥4.579.31
Lo 36 (/062026 150, 000,00 130,000,060
Loan 57 (406202 250, 000,00 250,000,00
Loan 58 24/0372024 220, 000,00 220, (1L 00
11.459.204,84 B.635307,72

%5 It corresponds toa loan gronted by the COTT

During the year 2021, loans for a total amount of 6.810 thousand euros were contracted with
various financial institutions. This contracting arose basically from the acquisition of the
investee Indenova, S.L.

Credit Lines

As of December 31, 2022, the Group has credit policies granted with a total limit amounting to
2.504.000 euros (1.913.500 euros at the end of the previous year), which amount drawn at the
aforementioned date is 1.216.116,30 suros (199.000,00 euros al the end of the previous year).

Lines of Effects and Import Advances

As of December 31, 2022, the Company has discount policies granted with a total limit
amounting to 575.000 euros (780.000 euros at the end of the previous year), of which no
provision has been made either at the end of this fiscal year or at the end of the previous fiscal
year.

9.1.2) Other Financial Liabilities

Deferred payvment for the acquisition of Indenova, 5.0,

On 30 November 2021 the Group acquired 100% of the shares of Indenova, 8.L. for a price of

7,100,000.00 euros, making a first payment of 4.010.387,67 euros, with the remaining amount,
i.e. 3.089.612,33 euros, deferred. A schedule of payments has been established, with dates 30
November 2022, 2023, 2024 and 2025 in cash, and another schedule of payments with dates 30
November 2023, 2024 and 2025 consisting of a fixed amount to be paid by means of the
delivery of shares in Lleidanctworks Serveis Telematics, 8.A. (own shares). At the end of the
2022 financial year, there are pending payments for a value of |,857,848.66 curos.
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Oiher debts

Other debts mainly comprise two loans held by the Company with the Institut Catald de
Finances (ICF), CDTI and former members of Indenova, S,L. The detail of these at the close of
fiscal years 2022 is as follows, in euros:

Tutity:

Loan 2
Loan 3
Loan 4
Lioan &
[Loan &
Loan 7

Liast Maturity

25072023
26/03/2024
23/01/2024
31132022
II2/2022
311202022

Amount granted

300.000,00
199.151,00
672.672,92
217.000,00
290,000,080
162,000,00

1.840.823,92

The detail at the close of fiscal year 2021 was as follows, in euros;

Entity:

Loan 2
Loan 3
Lyan 4
Loan 5
Loan &
Loan 7
Loan 8

-Imstﬁ'lﬂtnﬂt']f--

25/07/2023
26/03/2024
23/01/2024
3141242022
31/12/2022
31122022
3141202022

Am ﬂlllﬂ.'--gl'_all_tﬁﬂ

300.000,00
199.151,00
L1 LT750,00
217.000,00
290.000,00
1HZ.000,00

32.000,00

L311.901.00

Pending at closure

39, 196,40
49,213,453
| 16. 722,68
64971 46
10.548,00
12.893.31

293.545,30

Pending at closure

106.3590,16

84.470,17
196.098,13
217.000,00
290,000,000
L62.000,00

J2.000,00

1.087.958.46
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b) Breach of Contractual Obligations

No incidence has been produced in breach of the obligations relating to the loans received from
third parties.

0.3) Guarantees

The Group has contracted guarantees with several financial institutions for a total amount of
475.000 euros, a standard instrument when signing an interconnection agreement.

The Group does not have guarantees for loans except for Indenova, S.L., where the former
partners of the company appear as guarantors for certain loans.

NOTE 10, INFORMATION ON THE DEFERMENT OF PAYMENTS MADE TO
SUPPLIERS, THIRD ADDITIONAL PROVISION. "DUTY TO INFORM" OF LAW
15/2010, OF JULY 5

As indicated in the third additional provision. Duty to inform of Law 15/2010, of July 5
(modified by Law 31/2014), to amend Law 3/2004 of December 29, by which are established
measures to combat late payment in commercial transactions and with regard to the resolution
January 29, 2016, of the Institute of Accounting and Audit Statements, about the information
to include in the Notes to the Annual Accounts with regard to the average payment petiod to
suppliers in commercial transactions, is as follows:
Payments made and pending.
‘payment.on the balance sheet date !

Findnelalyear 2022 Financial year 2021

Aveiage payment pericd Lo suppliers 29.68 33,37
[atio paid operations 29,049 33,78
Ratio of ouistanding payiment msactions 28,05 30,22

Total payments

Total cutstanding paymerds

Tinaneial year 2022

12.529.440,21
2.381.552,03

Finaneial yenr 2022

Tinancial year 2021

11.246,740,85
2.324.889,74

Finaneial year-2021

Monetary Volume Paid T.319.503,23 T.OEDEE0.41
% of total payments made 58,4 1% 59%
Mumber of invoices 3,011 2716
Y of total inveices 6, 1 0% i
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NOTE 11. INFORMATION ON THE NATURE AND LEVEL OF THE RISK FROM
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

Group activities are exposed to various types of financial risk, most especially credit, liquidity
and market risks (exchange rate, interest rate and other price risks).

11.1) Credit Risk

The Group's main financial assets are cash and cash balances, trade and other receivables and
investments, which represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets.

The Group's credit risk is altributable mainly to its commercial debts. The amounts are reflected
in the net balance of provisions for bad debts, estimated by the Parent Company's management
based on the experience of previous years and its assessment of the current gconomic
gnvironment,

11.2) Liguidity Risk

The treasury department has a daily overview of the actual cash position and compares it with
weekly forecasts. The Group has ample short-term financial capacity, as reflected in the positive
balances on credit accounts.

11.3) Market Risk

Possible market risks are described in note 1.e.

11.4) Exchange Rate Risk

The Group's main exchange rate risks are with the US dollar and the Colombian peso. The
Group does not currently operate with exchange rate insurance, although it is a variable that is
being analysed for the future. The risk is low in the group, as the Group has both expenses and
revenues in these currencies, and therefore uses current accounts in these currencies to be able
to match payments in foreign currency with receipts in foreign currency., When there is a
currency mismatch, the Group uses the spot market, always analysing the evolution of the
curreney one month in advance in order to be able to take advantage of the best moment for the
exchange.

11.5) Interest Rate Risk

Changes in interest rates modify the fair value of assets and liabilities bearing a fixed interest
pate as well as the future flows of assets and liabilities referenced to a variable interesl rate,

The objective of interest rate risk management is to achieve a balance in the debt structure that
will minimize the cost of debt over the multiannual horizon with a reduced volatility in the
Profit and Loss Account.
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NOTE 12. EQUITY

12.1) Share Capital of Parent Company

12.1) Share Capital

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the share capital amounts to 320.998,86 euros and is
represented by 16.049.943 registered shares of 0,02 euros nominal each, fully subscribed and
paid up. These holdings enjoy equal political and economic rights.

As of December 31, 2022, as well as of December 31, 2021, there were no companies with a
direct or indirect holding equal to or greater than 10% of the Company's share capital.

Capital Increase

By virtue of the admission to trading on the Alternative Stoek Market, the Parent Company
carried out the following transactions in its share capital:

- On June 1,2015, 4 General Shareholders' Meeting resolved to split the shares of the Parent
Comparny by reducing the par value of the shares by 60,10 euros at a nominal value of 0,02
euros per share, In this operation, 3.005 shares were generated for each old share, with the
capital stocl being formed by 11.812.655 shares with a nominal value of each share at
nominal (,02 euros each.

- On June 1, 2015, it was agreed by the General Shareholders' Meeting to modify the system
of representation of the shares, transforming the nominative securities representing the
shares in which the Parent Company's capital is divided into account entries.

- OnJune 1, 2015, it was resolved by means of a General Meeting of Shareholders to modify
the transmission regime of the shares of the Parent Company, passing this transfer of shares
to be free and not subject to consent or authorization by the Company nor by shareholders

- On June |, 2015, it was agreed by the General Meeling of Shareholders to request the
incorporation in the segment of Companies in Expansion of the Alternative Stock Market
of all the shares representing the Pavent Company.,

- On September 30, 20135, it was agreed Lo Increase the Parent Company's Capital Stock by
84.745,78 euros through the issuance of 4.237.288 shares with a nominal value of 0,02
euros and an issue premium of 1,16 euros per share. This extension is fully subscribed and
disbursed.
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12.2) Reserves

The breakdown for Reserves is as follows, in euros:

31/12/2022 izl |
Légul Reseryve G 199,77 04,199,777
Voluntary Reserves 114507750 3320.716,13
Negative results from previous yeasrs (B27.269.89) (134990040}

238290747 1.935.015,50

12.3) Issue Premium

This reserve amounted to 5.244.344,28 euros, of which 329.090,20 curos arosc as a result of
the capital increase cartied out in 2007 and 4.915.254,08 euros arose as a result of the capital
increase carried out in the 2015 exercise for the departure of the Parent Company 1o the
Alternative Stock Market. It has the same restrictions and can be used for the same purposes as
voluntary reserves, including their conversion into share capital.

12.4) Own Shares

On | June 2015, the Company's shareholders' meeting resolved to authorise the Board of
Directors to derivatively acquire treasury shares under the terms provided for in current
legislation. These acquisitions of treasury shares were made through the liquidity provider GVC
Gaesco Valores SV, S.A. Al the shareholders' meeting on 7 June 2021, the allocation of funds for
the treasury stock programme is approved. ANDBANK SALU was appointed as manager for the
acquisition of the first 500,000 euros, to allocate it to 1leidanet contractual obligations with respect
to the acquisition of Indenova. whereby it was agreed 0 pay part of the deferred purchase price
in shares of the parent company. Subsequently, on 23 July 2021, a new allocation of a further
500 thousand euros was made, and all in all, 175,534 shares were purchased at an average price
of 5.33 euros per share.

On 29 September 2021, the company changed its liquidity provider, appointing Solventis A.V.,
S.A. in which 30 thousand shares were transferred from the former liguidity provider Gaesco,
and an additional 150 thousand euros were provided for the management of the company's
treasury shares.

Given the evolution of the Parent Company's share price during the year 2021, there have been
numerous transactions with own shaves in the matket. Specifically, the Group's own share
transactions were cartied out to pay for the acquisition of Indenova, and the results of these
(ransactions were recognised in equity, as required by prevailing legislation. In 2021, these
results have led to a decrease in Voluntary Reserves in the amount of 175.257,73 euros.

As of December 31, 2022, the Parent Company holds own shares for an amount of 1.731.481,07
euros (1.683.884,76 curos in the previous year) at an average cost price of 3,93 euros per share
(5,14 euros per share in the previous year). As a result of the sale of shares in the current year,
there has been a negative impact on the Company's reserves of 280 thousand eures, which is
explained by the decrease in the share price during 2022.
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NOTE 14. TAX SITUATION

The following is the breakdown of the balances with the Tax Authorities as of December 3 1,
2022 and December 31, 2021, in eurgs:

OV 7 St
Teceivable: Payable: Heceivable Payalie
Mon-eurrent:
Deferred Tax Aszets 474.315,13 - 29192637 -
474,315,13 = 291.926,37 =
Current:
Waloe Added Tax 136.963,24 198 312,54 07,353,537 339.09%.93
Subsidies receivable (*) AT ARG - 665906 -
[meone Tax refentions - 17337677 - 126, 185,04
Compoiy Tax £41.283,22 - 603 T455,60 =
Social Security bodiey 12:080,90 131.346,13 1.738 34 133.653,73
LOZEOT0,52 A03.035,44 TILEL0E2 S08.931,70

Tax Situation

In accordance with current legislation, tax payments cannot be considered final until they have
been ingpected by the tax authorities, or until the statute barring period of four years has passed.
In consequence, for the purposes of subsequent inspections, liabilities may arise additional to
those recorded by the Group.

As of December 31, 2022, the Group has open to tax inspection all the taxes to which it is
subject from the financial year 2019 to the 2022 financial year. Consequently, as a result of
possible inspections, additional liabilities could arise to those registered by the Group.
However, the Directors of the Parent Company and its tax advisors consider that such liabilities,
if they oceur, would not be significant on the annual accounts taken as a whole.

Profit Tax

The conciliation of the net amount of income and expenses for the year 2022 of the Parent
Company with the taxable income tax base is as follows:

Profit and Loss Account !
Financial year's carnings (After taxes) (2ZT.921.21)
Incremes Decraases Net effect
Profit tax RO 090,06 (146.582,09) (56,592,935}
Permanent differences L134.63521 - 1.134.635,21

Taxable income {tax result) 855,121,07
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The conciliation of the net amount of income and expenses for the year 2021 of the Parent
Company with the taxable income tax base is as follows:

Profit and Loss Account
Financial year's enrnings (After taxes) T72.367.96
Ticreases: Deeremses el effect
Profit tix > (14.902,83) (14.902,83)
Permanent ditferences 216.395,78 - 216,305,748
Compensation of tax loss earryforyarids: 973.8060,41

The following are the calculations made with regard to the Company Tax o be paid, in Euros:

2 2021
Charge at 25 % of Taxable lneome 213.780.27 24346523
Deductions [123,790,20) { LG4850
Net tax payahle B9.990,07 102.816,71
Loss: withholdings and payments {129.857 55) (74,533,200
Tax payahle (I9.86T.48) 18.281.50

The main components of corporate income tax expense are as follows:

2 2021
Current fax (121.727.91 277.197,15
Deferred tax 14224341 (120,219.53)
Total 20,565,350 (15697762

The movement of defetred taxes generated and cancelled during the year 2022 is detailed below
in euros:

Bafance at L e ) Halaiee at
Alizaazt Geerated Caneelled 31122022
Deferved tax assets: .
Tax credits 1144538 30.384,43 - 109381
Credits for dedustions 28042694 122,794,33 - 403.231,32

Total 291.926,37 182.388,76 - 47431513
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The movement of deferred taxes generated and cancelled during financial year 2021 is detailed
below in euros:

| Bulance at . . Balance at
| 31122020 Generated: Cancelled 32021
Deferved fax sassiis:

Tax eredis 23.340.88 . (12.041,500 11.499,3%
Cretlits lor deductions |J6.4 1880 14400819 2 240,476,949
Total 159,959,068 144.008,19 (12.041,50) 291,926,137

Credits for Tax Losses Carry Forward

The Group has activated the amount of the credit for tax bases of its invesiees L.leidanet Peru,
Lleidanet Colombia and Lleidanet Dominican Republic, since they meet the requirements
established by current regulations for their registration, and since there are no doubts about
the ability to generate future tax profits that allow their recovery.

Deductions Pending Application

As of December 31, 2022, the Group has the following deductions to apply:

Origin Year CAmuint
L 11, 288,42
209 17207108
2010 181164260
2011 21496129
2012 344,112,778
2003 478 680,64
2014 245, 340,28
2015 369, 824.03
26 | 88991 46
207 | 0,537,02
20018 1 T0.554.00
2019 163,214,606
2020 136,418,80
021 236,841,013
2022 2005.339,80

3249 346,64

In view of the Group's good performance, the Board of Directors of Parent Company has
decided to recognise the deductions pending to apply tax credits for the years 2021 and 2022 as
assets of the Group.
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NOTE 15. INCOME AND EXPENSES

a) Income

1. Disaggregation of revenue from ordinary activities,

The distribution of the net turnover carresponding to the Company's ordinary activities is shown
below:

2022 20
[Buginess urens. : 9, .
|| figures o {homsinds of eoras) Euroy % Rurns “Bh
Contemets 2.999 1 5% 3219 e
Molification 2468 125 2339 134
Cuieer Sans 3018 | 504 | 564 105
1CX Wholeszle Salutions 455 0% 7818 A
SRS Bolutions 3634 1 8% 2710 15%
Tuokal 20671 105 17,975 100%s

The distribution of revenue from the Company's ordinary activities by geographical market is
shown below:

| Geojraphie market disceiption. Tures L _ Baos &
Mational 159 0y | 2 44 45% 5 BT A6 &2 45.55%
Eurapean Union 5355241 84 25,91% 50483784 I8.05%
Rest of the World 126,400 48 25 4% 473900006 26,305
Total TOLATO6IT, 44 RIS 17 474.436,76 000

The distribution of revenue From the Company's ordinary activities, by type of contract, is
shown below:

Kinancial Finsncial
Yeur 2022 Vear 2021
Type of contract
Fixed price contracts {*) 19.499.516,12 15,423.864,90
Variahle contracts {**) 117117532 2,530.971,86
Total 20,670,691 44 17.074.836,76

(R Ui priees affered to cistamers far sacl Saol prodect, aswell as the Winlezile prices affeyed in a speeific petiod of
time for o destination i the SME, are considéned fived prices Please note e ol lnveices tsied are besed on

CRSITRES GOSN,
(**)  Therenroagresments with customers whire the selling price is variatiz depending on the number of ransactiong mids

The distribution of revenue from the Company's ordinary activities, by confract term, is shown
below:

| Fingneial Financial
Year 2022 Year2021
Duration of contract
Short-lerm conlracts == -
Long-tenm coniracts 20,670.691,44 P T.974. 830,70
Total {*) 20670691 44 17974836, 76

(4 The conracts sigeed by Lleidanerwith ils clients ave novatilly fir a period af o pear with fueit seesal, e o nas
envere af an elients who dierve asked ws ta teominate the contract i the fies year;
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The distribution of the net tutnover corresponding to the Company's ordinary activities, by sales
channels, is shown below:

Financiul Finandial |
Yeun 2022 Year2021
Sales chiannels |.299. 412,05 |.444.351.37
Distributors or wholesalers
Retailers (*) 28994401 20504135
Direet sales 19.081.335,38 15,765.444,00
Totml 2067069144 I7.974.836,70

() Reraeilors are cusfomess who buy o’ prodiets anlie,

There are invoices to be issied, mainly lor interconnection customer consumption in December
2022, which are invoices issued in January 2023,

There dre no significant payment terms, The usual method of collection is by transfer, either on
demand or 30 days after the invoice date.

There are no returns as there is no tangible asset. As for guarantees, they are those inherent to
the service established by standard contract.

b) Supplies

This heading in the Profit and Loss Account is composed as follows, in Furos:

2021 2011
Consumption of merchandise
Domestics 3.961.113,66 3.204.573,91
Intra-Comimunity Acguisitions . 073.073,54 3.547.959,27
Imiparts 180042153 186372815
9.924.608,74 H.616,261,33

c) Staff expenses

The staff expenses as in the Profit and Loss Account are composed as follows, in euros:

2022 2021
Company Socigl Seewrity contribulions |.296.433,96 HE0.957,66
Other welfare costs 130,018,588 117.916,28

1:426:852.84 HOR.H73,94



Consolidated Director's Report of Lieidanetworks Serveis Telemdtios, 8.4, and Subsidiaries Financial Year 2022 48

d} Financial Resulis

This heading in the Profit and Loss Account is composed as follows, in Euros;

2022, 200
Finanecial incomes 559,58 81,19
Oither finaneial incmnes 550,58 R4, 19
Financial expenses (166415,99) {B5.640,400)
For delts with eradil instilutions (16641599 (BE.610.40)
Exchange differences (45.912,98) {7.989.05)
Financial Result Positive / {Megative) (211:769,39) (92.H815,26)

NOTE 16. INFORMATION ON THE ENVIRONMENT

The Group has no assets, nor has it incurred expenses, aimed at minimizing the environmental
impact and protecting and improving the environment, There are likewise no provisions for
risks and expenses and no contingencies relating to protection and improvement of the
environment.

NOTE 17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Lleida.net group notified the market by means of a relevant fact dated 14 March 2023, the
decision to cut the certified e-mail and certified SMS service to the public company 472
(Servicios Postales de Colombia). The decision was taken as a result of the accumulated non-
pavments by 472 to Lleida.net, amounting to approximately 391 thousand euros, of which 249
thousand euros were pending collection at year-end.

There have been no significant events, except for those mentioned above, from December 31,
2027 to the date of formulation of these annual accounts that, affecting them, would not have
been included in them, ar whose knowledge could be useful to a user of the same,
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NOTE 18. CONSOLIDATED EARNINGS

The following is the breakdown for the financial year 2022 of the Consolidated Earnings in
Euros:

I Individual Tarnings ‘Resul
Harnings Attritited 0 Attributed to
~ofthe _ Parent External
Subidinry Companies  Shareholding Company Partners
Lleidanotworks Servels Telemdtics, 5.4, (222.921,23) (222,921,212} =
Ligidanetworks Serveis Telematics, LTD 22.814.50 1 0Rg 2281450 .
Ligidanet USA Ine 10,722,36 | % 14,722,36 -
Tieidanel Honduras, 54 - 0% - =
L Leldanet Dominicany, SRL 106531 09 Ry |.06%,10 0,21
Lleida SAS 15 185,75 10054 15, 183,75 -
L lzicda Chile S1A (3691173 100% (3.691.15) .
Lleidaret do Brasil Lida (1.68531) I (1L6BR3 144y (0,16}
Lleidanet Guatemals - By - .
Portabilidades Espafiolas, 5.4, - 100 - =
Ligidanet Costa Rica (1d,24) (1% (14,24) -
Lieidanct Peri 215133 | i 215133 -
Lleida Tnfonnation Technology Network Services  {101,8%6,39) 49%, (40,020,335 [51.967.26)
Indenova, 5.1, (671,151,840 1005 (6T1.151.584) -
Lleidanet South Africs (#32,05) 100 (%32,95) 2
(952.250,07) (9N0.282,86) (51.967.21)

The following is the breakdown for the financial year 2021 of the Consolidated Earnings in
Euros:

[rdi}wﬂg_u.t r
Afhthn el fo Rrguli'
1A, rrMhe Parni Altributed (0
Subsidiney Companies Shareluhling - Company:  External Partners
Lleidanetworks Serveis Telembtics, 5.4, TI2 36158 - TI236796 -
Llsidanetwarks Serveis Tolomitics, LTD 45.931__35 1005 45,932,353 -
Ligiclanet LSA Inc |4, 056,31 10 1405631 -
Ligigtanet Honduras, 54 - 0% . -
LLedtianat Driminicana, SRL 241 .56 gk G 241,51 0,05
Liesin SAS 1,850, 78 LF1% | 890 758 -
Lleide Chile SPA {7400 5T 0% {7 A50.87) -
Lieidanet do Beasil Lida {2.253.98) UG OO0 {2.253,75) {23}
Lleidanet Cuntemala . B0 - e
Portabilefudes Espafoles, 5.4 - 100 -
Lileidanet Costn Rica (33,74) 1005 (35,74}
Ligicanel Pend 1:523,21 106 152321 -
Lieida Information Tochnotogy Motwork Seovices (0228 05) #49% (3117 (A5816,31)
|ndenova, 5 L. (BB 323 97) | (1% (68.323.97) -
Ligsdunet Seuth Alnce {F31,80) [0 (131,86) -
AETETT T T23.354,19 {35.816,48)

The adjustments made to the Earnings associated to Parent Company in 2022 is as follows:

Inchividusl garnings atiribated (o Parenl Company

Consolidation adjustrments; (Y00.282,86)
Feversal of credil impairment 1.096.364,52
Aamortisation of poodwill Indenova, 5.1, {468.542.96)
Impaiment of goodwill lndenova, 51, { 190,207,600

Tatal {462.968.90)
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The adjustments made to the Eamnings associated to Parent Company in 2021 is as follows:

Individoal earnings attributed to Parent Company T23304,19
Censolidation-adjusiments:

Feversal of credit impaimment 18254276
Amortization of goodwill lndenova, 8.1 (T8.140.49)
Elimination of profitfloss 2021 Indenova prior 1 acguisition 8328735
Total 91148381

NOTE 19. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

19.1) Balances and Transactions with the Directors of the Parent Company and Senior
Executives

The remuneration acerued during the financial year 2022 by the Board of Directors of the Parent
Company amounted to 100.500 euros (100.500 euros in the previous year),

Senior Management tasks are carried out by three members of the same Board of Directors
(three members in the previous year), with remuneration amounting to 300.474,07 euros
(296,947.77 euros in the previous year). The detail for this amount is as follows, in euros:

2022 2021
Wages and salaries FT4.274.29 277, 749,63
Payment in kind 26.199,78 19.198,14
J00.474.07 296.947,77

The heading for remuneration in kind includes both vehicle rentals and life insurance fior the
company's executive directors.

As of December 31, 2022, and 2021, there are no credits or advances with the Board of
Directors of the Parent Company, as well as commitments for pension supplements, guarantees
or guaraniees granted in its favour.

Other Information Regarding the Board of Directors

Pursuant to the Capital Companies Law, it is reported that the members of the Parent Company's
Management Body do not hold interests in other companies with the same, similar or
complementary corporate purpose.

n aceordance with the above-mentioned Law Capital Companies, it is also reported that the
members of the Board have carried out no activity, on their own behalf or on behalf of others,
with the Group, which may be considered to be not in accordance with normal trading and not
carried out under normal market conditions.
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NOTE 20. OTHER INFORMATION

The average number of employees during fiscal 2022 and 2021, distributed by category and

gender, is as follows:
|

Senior Execulives
Adminisiration
Commercial
Production
Maintanance
Reception

Business developrent
Compliance

Human Resources
Inlelleciual Property

TOTAL

2022

163,67

i, 5
2775
86,38
(L858

B
B 51
5
3
2

=3 4 Lh D0
o] — Ly

117,17

The distribution of the Group's employees at the end of fiscal year 2022, by category and

gender, is as follows:

Senior Execulivis
Administration
Commercial
Praduction
haintenance
Regeption

Business develomnent
Complinmce

[Human Resources
[ntellectual Propery

TOTAL

I S e S

L]

104

202

Wamen

o3 =g W

(RS S W - B

Gy

Total

170

isabily éates
thim or equal to 33%%

The distribution of the Group's employees at the end of fiscal 2021, by category and gender,

was as follows:

Senior Excoutives
Administeation
Commereial
Produetion
hiintenance
Reception

Business development
Compligne

Human Resources
Intellectizal Property

TOTAL

I
a5

B B o 4= O

1t

;’rﬂMl

I
23
108

19

b3 Ly LA WD

180

Disability greater.
than orequal to 33%

T i, e i _ i
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The breakdown of the audit fees for the financial years 2022 and 2021 is as follows:

| o 2t

Smtutary Avdits [ees Tor the provigion of pudit services: 31000 33,500
Statutery Avdiiors fees for ather non-gudit services (*) 4,500 17000
Statutary Auditor's network [inms' fees

fior other-and other serviess (**) . 7500
Tatnl 5500 SR.000

(4 The amonun of fees for ather services corregmonded to e vertficntion corresponding tothe Tanited peifen of the
{iterin finmrciod atetemenss oy of 30 ene 20238 and 30 Twee 2020
== The annnd of fes fram s e the Sty Anditor's network for aiher services ofher thas rangler gricing reparts

The Group is hereby informed that duting the year it has paid the premium corresponding to
the civil lability policy that would eventually cover any damage caused to third parties by acts
or omissions related to the performance of its duties. The premium amounted to 72.904,77 euros
(32.064 euros in the previous year).

NOTE 21. GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION

Details of goodwill in consolidation at year-end 2022 are as follows, in euros:

 Cost Amartisation Impairment Net Vislue.
31122022 322022 3141212022 3171212022
Cost:
indenova, S.1., 4,688.429,58 (546.983,45) (190,207,60) 3.951.238,53
Goodwill on consolidation 4.658.429,58 (546.983,45) (190.207,60) 3.951.234,53

The detail of the existing consolidation goodwill at the end of the 2021 financial year is as
follows, in curos:

 Gost Amoriisation Net Valiie
31n2/2021 3if1zi2021 a2z

Cost: :
Indenova, S.L. 4.688.429.58 {78 140,49} 4.610,28%.00
Goodwill on consofidation 4.688429,58 (T8 140,49) A610:289,09

The Parent Company's Board of Directors has performed the analysis of the recoverability of
this consolidation goodwill mentioned above, using cash flows based on sales projections for
the period 2023-2027. According to management, these projections are based on the budget
for 2023, the degree of compliance with the budget at the date of formulation of these
Consolidated Financial Statements and management's best expectations for the business until
2027 for the corresponding analysis of possible impairments at 31 December 2022. Sales
growth has been estimated at 61%, 14%, 12%, 10% and 8% respectively for each of the next
5 years. Cash flows have also been discounted using the average cost of funds after tax. The
discount rate used was 1 7% and a perpetual income of 2.5% was estimated.

As a result of the foregoing, the Parent Company's Board of Dircctors has considered
impairing the goodwill in consolidation in the current year by 190 thousand euros (see Note
5) based on the expectations of cash flow generation forecast for the coming years by this
investee company.
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GROUP LLEIDANETWORS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2022
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GROUP LLEIDANETWORS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED DIRECTORS® REPORT FOR
THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2022

In compliance with the provisions of the Corporations Law, the directors present below the
management report for the year, in order to complement, expand and comment on the balance
sheet, the profit and loss account and the report corresponding to fiscal year 2022,

1. EVOLUTION OF RESULT AND NET TURNOVER

The year 2022 has been the year of integration of Indenova into the Lleida.net Group. The
fusion of technologies has been achieved with the first hybrid products that have come onto the
market, as well as cross-selling between the entities that make up the group. It has also been a
year in which work has been done to implement the group's policies within the new company
and to optimize processes.

These efforts have been produced from all areas of the group, but we have managed to reach
our record sales figure of 20.7 million, which represents an increase of 15%.

Soles by business [ine thousand euros 2021 Z03R Var. Euros Var.%

Contracts 3219 1,599 40 T
Hatification 2359 2,468 109 5%
Other 5aas 1.B6% 3115 1,244 a7
SME Solutions 2.7M0 ERES 024 34%
1CK WHOLESALE Snlutions 7.B18 8,453 637 BE
Total 17.975 20,671 2.696 15%

The evolution has been different in each line of business, with an increase in all of them except
in the contracting part.

The contracting line has had a 7% decrease derived from the lower demand that we are seeing
in the market as well as a reduction in prices, especially in the national market, We have reached
almost 3 million euros.

The notification line has grown by 5% to 2.5 million euros. A slower than expected increase,
boosted by the evolution of the price of the Colombian peso against the euro. We do not have
a reduction in units or prices, but the sales that the Colombian company contributes to the
consolidated have had a lower impact derived from the currency price.

In the part of other Saa$ services, we have an increase of 67% in sales to 3.1 million curos. This
year we have included the total sales of Indenova in the consolidated year, compared to the two
months that we included in 2021 after the purchase. We also include in this line of business, all
the verification products that have had a decrease as they are services that are prior to the
contracting products thal have had less demand.

The commercial SMS line that includes the SMS that are sold to end customers, mainly
nationals, has increased by 34% to 3.6 million euros. The increases are marked by the increase
in consumption by recurring customets, as well as by the acquisition of small accounts.
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The SMS Whalesale line, where we group all sales to operators and aggregators, has grown by
8% this year to 8.4 million euros. The increase is explained both by the increase in units sold
and by the increase in the finishing prices of these products.

Drate t thiusand ewras 0 2022 Var, Kures  Var'%

Snles [7.973 20.671 1606 15%
Cost of sales -B.016 0925 1.309 | 3%
Gross Profit 9,359 10,746 1.387 15%.
Staff Expenses <4381 -6.340 -1.959 -15%
Cither expenses 3477 -3.681 -2k %
Capitalization Tt 1156 3R0 40
EBITDA 2277 1.E81 -394 ~18%
Other ingomes 47 k] i} kb
Deprecintien -1.257 -2.073 -Kl6 b 5%
Lesults on disposals -4 -194 -185 256%
Cither resulls 67 -2 b9 “S0%
Operating Resolt 1.125 -323 -1.448 -129%
Financial income -85 -166 a1 95%
lmpairment and results on disposals

Exchange rate differences -7 -4 39 3579
Profit before tax 1.033 -535 -1,348 ~129%%

The gross margin remains at 52% of sales. but in absolute terms we have an increase of 1.4
million euros, which represents an additional 15% compared to 2021 devived from the increasc
in sales,

The item of expenses that has increased the most in 2022 has been those associated with
personnel. It is mainly derived from the incorporation of the Indenova workforce into the
consolidated, We currently have an average workforce made up of 164 professionals compared
to the 117 we had in 2021. One of the essential axes of growth for the Group is innovation,
which cannot be achieved without the technical staff we have, who are experts within of their
subject matter and will be the basis for sales growth in the years to come.

External service expenses reached 3.7 million euros, representing 6% of sales and assuming an
increase of 6% compared to 2021, The increase is mainly explained by the incorporation of
Indenova's annual expenses to the consolidated, as well as as well as the increase in investment
that has been made in trade fairs and missions.

EBITDA stands at 1.9 million eures, with a decrease of 18% compared to the data for 2021,
due to the increase in personnel expenses that have been higher than the increase in gross
margin.

The operating result is negative by 323 thousand euros, penalised by the incorporation of the
amortisation of Indenova's goodwill, which amounted to an additional 469 thousand eurcs, as
well as the depreciation of goodwill of 190 thousand euros.

Profit before tax was negative by 535 thousand euros, compared o | million euros in 2021, as
a result of the increase in the financial costs required for the acquisition of Indenova, as well as
the exchange differences arising from the evolution of the US dollar and the Colombian
currency.
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2. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Lleida.net group notified the market through a relevant fact of March 14, 2023, of the
decision to cut off the certified email and certified SMS service to company 472 (Colombian
Postal Services). The decision was made as a result of the accumulated defaults by 472 towards
Lleica.net and amounting to approximately 391,000 euros, of which not all have expired.

After December 31, 2022, and up to the date of preparation of this Maragement Repaort, there
have been no subsequent events in addition to those already mentioned in the Explanatory Notes
to the annual accounts and the previous point, which reveal circumstances that already existed
as of December 31, 2022 and that due to the importance of their economic impact they should
entail adjustments in the Financial Statements or modifications in the information contained in
the explanatory notes.

There are also no other subsequent events, other than those already mentioned in the
Explanatory Notes, that demonstrate conditions that did not exist as of December 31,2022 and
that are of such importance that they require additional information in the Explanatory Notes to
the annual accounts.

3, PROBABLE EVOLUTION OF THE GROUP

The forecasts for the 2023 financial year are to increase sales of the Group's SaaS products,
specifically notification and electronic contracting. It will allow an increase in the gross margin
and thanks to the containment of expenses we will achieve a higher EBIDTA.

4. RESEARCH ACTIVITIES

In the 2022 financial year, the Group has invested 1,156 thousand euros in research activities
aimed mainly at the Group's certification line and hybrid products together with Indenova
technology.

5. OPERATIONS WITH OWN SHARES

In accordance with the provisions of the BME Growth and Euronext Growth regulations, the
company signed a liquidity agreement with the placement bank on the occasion of its listing on
the market. This agreement establishes both the delivery of a certain amount of treasury shares
and the deposit ol a certain amount of cash. The objective of this contract is to allow investors
to negotiate the shares of the company, ensuring that any interested person has the possibility
of buying or selling shares.

As of December 31, 2022, the company had 433,357 shares with a valuation on that date of
895.289.01 euros, which represented 2.7% of the shares of Ligidanetworks Serveis Telemalics,
S
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS,

During 2022, the Group is not exposed to significant exchange rate risk, therefore it dogs not carry
out operations with exchange rate financial instruments,

The treasury department has a daily vision of the actual treasury situation and it is compared with
the weekly forecasts that are made. The Group has a comfortable short-term financial capacity, as
reflected by the positive balances in credit accounts.

Faced with situations of global uncertainty, such as the spread of COVID-19, the Group has
achieved the collaboration of financial institutions to sign new financing agreements, both short
and long term.

The main exchange rate risks that the Group has are with the dollar and the Colombian peso. The
eroup does not currently operate with exchange rate insurance, although it is a variable that is being
analyzed for the future. The risk is reduced in the group, because we have both expenses and
income in those currencies, so we use checking accounts in those currencies to be able to meel
payments in foreign currency with receipts in foreign currency. When we have a currency defect,
we go to the spot market, always analyzing the evolution of the cutrency a month in advance in
arder to take advantage of the best moment for the change.

7. DEFERMENT OF PAYMENT TO SUPPLIERS

Information concerning defervals of payments to suppliers is shown in the Financial Statements in
Note 10.

8. EFFECTS DERIVED FROM THE CONFLICT IN UKRAINI

The information referring to the effects derived from the current situation caused by the conflict
in Ukraine is shown in the Financial Statements, in Note |.e

# ook e gk ok ok K E



PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS AND DIRECTOR'S REPORT
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TELEMATICS, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES draw up the Consolidated Annual Accounts and
the Consolidated Director's Report for the financial year 2022, which comprises the attached
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